EAST IRONDEQUOIT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

POLICIES OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Table of Contents

Introduction	6
Temporary S	Suspension of Conflicting Board Policies7
1000 Series: 0	Governance 8
Policy 1010	Vision, Mission, Motto9
Policy 1020	Board Members Nominations, Elections and Terms of Office10
Policy 1030	Board Member Authority11
Policy 1040	Evaluation of School Board Operational Procedures12
Policy 1050	Submission of Propositions at Annual/Special District Meetings13
Policy 1060	Board Meetings14
Policy 1070	Administrative Organization / Operation15
Policy 1080	Board Policies16
Policy 1090	Administrative Regulations17
Policy 1100	Requests for Information from Board Members18
Policy 1110	Voter Proof of Residency19
Policy 1120	Appointed Board Officials20
2000 Series: I	Districtwide
Policy 2010	Non-Discrimination
Policy 2020	Indemnification of Board Members, District Employees and Volunteers23
Policy 2030	Public Access to District Information24
Policy 2040	Tobacco Policy25
Policy 2050	Community Use of School Facilities, Property and Equipment26
Policy 2070	Acceptable Use of Computer System28
Policy 2080	Gifts
Policy 2090	Compliance with COVID-19 Health and Safety Requirements30
Policy 2100	Test to Stay31
Policy 2110	Diversity, EQUITY, and inclusion in the district32

Policy 2120	Workplace Violence Prevention	35
3000 Series: \$	Students	. 36
Policy 3010	Programs for Students with Disabilities	37
Policy 3030	Independent Educational Evaluations	42
Policy 3040	Regarding Response to Intervention "RTI"	43
Policy 3050	Adoption of Courses & Curriculum, Selection of Textbooks/Library Material	s 45
Policy 3060	Internet Safety Policy	46
Policy 3070	Field Trips and Excursions	48
Policy 3080	School Volunteers	49
Policy 3090	Student Assessment	50
Policy 3100	Graduation Requirements	51
Policy 3110	Parent and Family Engagement (Title I Policy)	52
Policy 3120	Objection to instructional materials	54
Policy 3130	Instruction for Students with Limited English Proficiency	56
Policy 3140	Student Harassment and Bullying Prevention and Intervention	57
Policy 3150	School Attendance Areas	60
Policy 3160	Age of Entrance	61
Policy 3170	Transfer Students Under Disciplinary Penalty	62
Policy 3180	Non-Resident Students	63
Policy 3190	Comprehensive Student Attendance	64
Policy 3200	Student Publications	70
Policy 3210	Screening of New School Entrants	71
Policy 3220	Academic Intervention Services	72
Policy 3230	Interpreters for Hearing Impaired Parents	73
Policy 3240	Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting	74
Policy 3250	Student Directory Information	75
Policy 3260	Pupil Rights	76
Policy 3270	Notification of Release of Sex Offenders	80
Policy 3280	Wellness Policy	81
Policy 3290	Policy for the Education of Homeless Children	82

Policy 3300	Athletic/Extracurricular Eligibility	96
Policy 3310	Admission of Exchange Students	97
Policy 3320	Use of Video and/or Audio Recording Devices in Classrooms	99
Policy 3330	Dissection of Animals	100
Policy 3340	Therapeutic Crisis Intervention	101
Policy 3350	Therapy Dogs in School	102
Policy 3360	Voter Registration for Students	103
Policy 3370	Data Security and Privacy Policy	104
4000 Series: N	Noninstructional Business Operations	. 105
Policy 4010	Fiscal Practices	106
Policy 4020	Transfer of District Funds	107
Policy 4030	Accepting Gifts	108
Policy 4040	Sale and Disposal of Surplus Property	109
Policy 4050	District Investments	110
Policy 4060	Accounting and Reporting	111
Policy 4070	Purchasing	112
Policy 4080	Insurance	113
Policy 4090	Recycling of Solid Waste	114
Policy 4100	School Lunch Program	115
Policy 4110	Infectious Disease Control Program	116
Policy 4120	Transportation Policy	117
Policy 4130	Drug and Alcohol Testing of Bus Drivers and Other Safety Personnel	119
Policy 4140	Extra Classroom Activity Funds	120
Policy 4160	Accidents	121
Policy 4170	Partisan Political Activity	122
Policy 4180	Travel and Conferences	123
Policy 4190	Cellular Phones	125
Policy 4200	Credit and Procurement Cards and Charge Accounts	126
Policy 4210	Meals and Refreshments	127
Policy 4220	Naming School Facilities	128

Policy 4230	Electronic Signatures	130
Policy 4240	Reporting and Investigations of Allegations of Fraud or Misconduct.	131
Policy 4250	Information Security Breach and Notification	132
Policy 4260	Gender Neutral Single-Occupancy Bathrooms	133
5000 Series: I	Personnel	134
Policy 5010	Equal Employment Opportunity	135
Policy 5020	Unlawful Harassment	136
Policy 5030	Drug-Free Workplace	146
Policy 5040	Conditional/Emergency Appointments Child Safety	147
Policy 5050	Firearms and Other Weapons	148
Policy 5060	Certification	149
Policy 5070	Family and Medical Leave	150
Policy 5080	Code of Ethics for All District Personnel	151

Introduction

Policies of The Board of Education of the East Irondequoit Central School District

WELCOME TO THE EAST IRONDEQUOIT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY MANUAL

This Policy Manual holds the guiding principles that lead the district forward as we provide educational services for our students. It reflects the course the school board has set for the district.

The superintendent and district administrators are guided by these policies daily. It is reviewed yearly to keep it current. It is in compliance with all state and federal mandates.

The Board of Education is made up of nine elected volunteer representatives from our community. Local control of our school district means that we are aware of the unique needs of our community and our students because we live here. The Board of Education places the highest value on the education of our students. This motivates us to work together in an atmosphere of open, honest discussion of the issues facing us as we move forward to provide a quality education in a safe and nurturing environment for the children of East Irondequoit.

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

The Board of Education operates under a Policy Governance model and has three major responsibilities:

- To hire and work collaboratively with the superintendent.
- To provide strategic direction for the district. This includes but is not limited to vision, mission, goals and pro-active policy development.
- To maintain a high level of fiscal integrity (annual budget).

TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF CONFLICTING BOARD POLICIES

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the New York State Governor declared, under Executive Order 202.4, all schools within New York State to be closed to students no later than March 18, 2020 for a period of two weeks, ending on April 1, 2020, in response to the COVID- 19 public health emergency; and

WHEREAS, various subsequent executive orders were issued by the New York State Governor resulting in the closure of schools to students for the remainder of the 2019-2020 school year; and

WHEREAS, on or about July 13, 2020, the New York State Department of Health issued interim guidance for in-person instruction at Pre-K to Grade 12 schools during the COVID- 19 public health emergency for the 2020-2021 school year; and

WHEREAS, on or about July 16, 2020, the New York State Education Department released reopening guidance for schools for the 2020-2021 school year.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Education resolves as follows:

- 1. In an effort to comply with reopening requirements, the Board hereby temporarily suspends any Board policy or administrative regulation/procedure that conflicts with any current or future federal, state, or local law, regulation, executive order, and/or state or federal guidance released for the purpose of reopening of schools.
- 2. The Superintendent of Schools is authorized to follow the federal, state, or local laws, regulations, executive orders, and/or state or federal guidance and to take such action as necessary and proper for the purpose of reopening of schools.



POLICY 1010 VISION, MISSION, MOTTO

VISION STATEMENT

The East Irondequoit Central School District is dedicated to providing a world-class education for all students. Our educational environment will nurture creativity, critical thinking and problem solving skills. We will inspire our students to become inquiring, knowledgeable and caring individuals who positively contribute to our local and global communities.

DISTRICT MISSION

The mission of the East Irondequoit Central School District is to provide a variety of educational tools and programs that will enable our graduates to become college and career ready.

DISTRICT MOTTO

"Building A Future, One Student At A Time"

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, September 14, 2021

POLICY 1020 BOARD MEMBERS NOMINATIONS, ELECTIONS AND TERMS OF OFFICE

NUMBER OF BOARD MEMBERS AND TERMS OF OFFICE

The Board of Education of the East Irondequoit Central School District consists of nine members. A full term for Board Members is three years beginning July 1 following their election.

BOARD MEMBER NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

Board positions are not considered separate specific offices. All positions are filled on an "at large" basis. Therefore, nominating petitions must not describe any specific position on the Board for which the candidate is nominated.

Voting in all District votes and elections is by machine (unless the Board directs the use of paper ballots by resolution), with provisions made for the election by "write-in-vote" of any candidate not previously nominated.

The hours of voting will be as designated by Board resolution, within the limits provided by law.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, September 14, 2021,

POLICY 1030 BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY

Board members have no individual authority over school affairs. They have authority only when acting as a body duly called in session, with limited exceptions provided by law or by board resolution. Board members exercise their authority by voting in open sessions of Board meetings (except when a vote in executive session is authorized by law).

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, September 14, 2021

POLICY 1040 EVALUATION OF SCHOOL BOARD OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES

The Board of Education will review the effectiveness of its internal operations at least once annually. The Superintendent of Schools (and others as determined by the Board) will be asked to participate in this review and to suggest ways for the Board to improve its functioning as a deliberative and legislative body.

The Board President is responsible for setting the dates for the annual evaluation.

Board Approved 2016 Board Reviewed 2019, October 5, 2021

POLICY 1050 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSITIONS AT ANNUAL/SPECIAL DISTRICT MEETINGS

Voters may submit propositions to appear on the ballot at annual and special district elections/votes. All propositions must be submitted by petition to the District Clerk. Those petitions must be signed by at least 25 qualified voters, or five percent of the number of voters in the previous annual election of Board members, whichever is greater. Each qualified voter who signs the petition must also include the address of his/her residence. A separate petition is required for each proposition. Petitions must be filed with the District Clerk at least 45 days before the vote. However, if the proposition must be included in the legal notice of the vote, the petition must be filed with the District Clerk at least 75 days before the vote.

Propositions submitted in accordance with legal requirements and these rules and accepted by the Board of Education will be printed on the ballot.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, October 5, 2021

POLICY 1060 BOARD MEETINGS

REGULAR MEETINGS AND WORKSHOPS

Regular Board meetings and workshops will be held on dates set by the Board at its annual organizational meeting (subject to change by the Board). All Board meetings are open to the public (except where the Board must meet in Executive Session, as discussed below) consistent with the Open Meetings Law.

SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special Board meetings may be called by any member of the Board. Notice of special meetings must be given at least 24 hours before the meeting to every Board member, unless waived by all Board members.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board may conduct an executive session to discuss one (or more) of purposes enumerated in New York Public Officers Law Section 105 and/or any other matter required or permitted by law. The Board may take action in executive session where specifically permitted by law.

AGENDA FORMAT/PREPARATION

Items from Board members to be presented on the agenda are to be given to the President of the Board or, in his/her absence, to the Vice-President. The Superintendent will be responsible for scheduling agenda items originating from administrators, professional staff, and other employees. The Board President and Superintendent will meet to set up the final agenda.

RULES OF ORDER

Meetings of the Board of Education will be held in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order, subject to modification as appropriate to advance the business of the Board.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, October 5, 2021

POLICY 1070 ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION / OPERATION

The Board's specific role is to deliberate and to establish broad policies for governing the School District. The Board delegates authority to the Superintendent who, acting as chief executive officer, directs and oversees the operations of the District in a manner consistent with law and these policies. Accordingly, the Superintendent is held accountable to the Board for compliance with all applicable law and its policies.

The Superintendent is also empowered to assign and use resources; employ, promote, evaluate, discipline and deploy staff; to translate policies of the Board into action; to speak as agent of the Board; to organize and delegate administrative responsibilities; and to exercise such other powers as are customary for chief executive officers of school districts in New York State.

When a Board policy states that the Superintendent is responsible for a particular task, the responsibility for completing the task may be delegated to another by the Superintendent in his/her discretion, so long as doing so does not violate any applicable federal or state law or regulation.

The Superintendent of Schools, or his/her designee, is responsible to the Board for the administration of the budget, including (but not limited to) acquainting District employees with the final provisions of the program budget and guiding them in planning to operate efficiently and economically within these provisions. Within legal limits as established by the Board, the Superintendent is authorized to transfer funds within the budget.

All employees of the District are under the general direction of the Superintendent. Teachers are immediately responsible to the principal of the building in which they work. Other employees are immediately responsible to the administrative personnel under whom they work directly. The Board of Education encourages communication designed to promote an honest and open two-way flow of information and ideas about district business. The basic line of communication is from staff to Principal (or other Supervisor) to Superintendent to Board.

The obligations, duties and responsibilities of all administrative and supervisory personnel are set forth in job descriptions issued by the Superintendent.

From time to time, problems and new questions arise for which no specific policy has been prepared. The Superintendent and members of the administrative staff are to act in a manner consistent with law and the existing policies of the School District and alert the Board to the possible need for additional policy development.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, October 19, 2021 Board Revised January 10, 2023

POLICY 1080 BOARD POLICIES

Board Policies are the governing statements of the District. They are, in essence, the laws of our school district.

Policy statements will be considered for adoption or — in the case of existing policies — change or rescission (collectively referred to as "policy changes") at the request of a Board member or the Superintendent of Schools. Except in the case of Board-designated matters of urgency policy changes must undergo two readings before the Board in order to be approved. In other words, the Board must consider policy changes at two separate board meetings, having the opportunity to discuss the changes and to make modifications to them. The policy change will become effective if approved by a majority vote at or after the second reading.

Where the Board is confronted with what it deems to be a matter of urgency, the Board may adopt a policy change upon a single reading. Whether a situation is an "matter of urgency" will be determined by a majority of the Board.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019 Amended December 14, 2021

POLICY 1090 ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

Administrative Regulations are the specific actions, procedures, protocols, arrangements, etc. which are necessary or proper for the implementation of Board Policies or of applicable laws. The Superintendent is hereby given the responsibility of the creation (when necessary) and the enforcement of all administrative regulations. They must in every respect be consistent with Board Policy and all applicable laws. The Superintendent is also responsible for informing the Board periodically of changes in administrative regulations.

The Board of Education shall be provided electronic access to the District's policy manual and written notification of significant changes to regulations in order to perform its duty to monitor implementation of board policies.

Except when Board action is specifically required by law, or when the Superintendent has requested Board action, regulations need not be discussed nor acted upon by the Board. However, the Board may request the Superintendent to reconsider, or may amend or disapprove a regulation adopted by the Superintendent when the Board judges the regulations to be inconsistent with Board policies. In such case, the Board should identify the policy or policies with which the regulation conflicts.

POLICY 1100 REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION FROM BOARD MEMBERS

In order for Board of Education members to receive requested information in an expedient and complete manner without undue expenditure of District personnel time and money:

- Requests for copies of existing documents made by individual Board members should be directed to the Superintendent of Schools. The Superintendent will delegate the request to the most appropriate staff person.
- Documents of fifty (50) or more pages will be reviewed at the District Office unless otherwise approved by the Board.
- Requests to generate reports (as opposed to records) by individual board of education members will be made at a Board meeting and the Board will decide if the administration is to generate the requested report.
- All Board members will receive copies of all documents/reports which are provided to an individual Board member under this policy. Documents/reports will be provided electronically unless Board members request to receive paper copies of the documents/reports.

Board Reviewed 2013, 2016, 2019, December 14, 2021 Board Revised 2018

POLICY 1110 VOTER PROOF OF RESIDENCY

Every voter is required to provide one form of proof of residency in order to vote in any annual or special school district election or vote. Acceptable forms of identification must indicate the name and address of the voter. By way of example, the following are forms of proof which are considered acceptable by the District:

- 1. Valid driver's license;
- 2. Non-driver identification card;
- 3. Utility bill;
- 4. Voter registration card.

The District Clerk decides any questions concerning the validity of the proof of residency presented.

Where a prospective voter presents no proof of residency or the proof offered is otherwise unacceptable, the individual will be permitted to vote only if he/she signs the declaration of voter eligibility stating that he/she is a qualified voter of the School District.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, December 14, 2021

POLICY 1120 APPOINTED BOARD OFFICIALS

Board Officials are appointed annually by the Board at the Organizational Meeting or as otherwise provided by law.

These officials are ultimately responsible to the Board of Education. However, the day-to-day supervision of the person holding each position will be performed by the Superintendent of Schools and/or his/her designee. These officials are responsible for performing all the duties required of the position-holder by law or required by the Board of Education, the Superintendent or his/her designee.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019 Amended January 11, 2022



POLICY 2010 NON-DISCRIMINATION

No person in the East Irondequoit Central School District will be unlawfully excluded from participation in, denied advantages of, or subjected to discrimination under any education program or activity, on the basis of military status, sexual orientation, race, color, religion, national origin, political affiliation, marital status, ancestry, age, disability or any other status protected by law. The Superintendent is hereby authorized to promulgate any regulations which are necessary and proper to implement this policy, including but not limited to developing and disseminating procedures for the filing discrimination complaints, the investigation of same, and appeal procedures.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, January 11, 2022

POLICY 2020 INDEMNIFICATION OF BOARD MEMBERS, DISTRICT EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS

The Board hereby confers on District Board Members, School Officials (elected or appointed), District employees and volunteers (expressly authorized to participate in a publicly-sponsored volunteer program) the benefits of Public Officers Law §18 and agrees to be held liable for the costs incurred under its provisions. This duty to defend or indemnify and save harmless is conditioned upon: (i) delivery by the board member, official, employee or volunteer of a written request to the Superintendent or his/her designee for the District to provide for his/her defense together with the original or a copy of any summons, complaint, process, notice, demand or pleading within ten days after he is served with such document, and (ii) the full cooperation of that individual in the defense of such action or proceeding and in defense of any action or proceeding against the District based upon the same act or omission, and in the prosecution of any appeal. These benefits supplement, and are available in addition to, defense or indemnification protection conferred by another enactment.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, January 11, 2022

POLICY 2030 PUBLIC ACCESS TO DISTRICT INFORMATION

The District will provide information to the public about the administration and operation of its schools in accordance with Federal and State Law (e.g., the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, the New York State Freedom of Information Law, etc.) and maintain records in accordance with the Records Retention and Disposition Schedules, promulgated by the Commissioner of Education.

The Superintendent of Schools will develop regulations designed to comply with applicable laws and governing the procedures to be followed to obtain access to district records. The Superintendent also will designate, subject to Board approval, a records management officer as required by law.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, January 11, 2022

POLICY 2040 TOBACCO POLICY

Smoking or the use of tobacco products by anyone (as well as possession of tobacco products or smoking / vaporizing paraphernalia by students) is prohibited on school grounds, in school vehicles, and in any building owned or leased by the District, at any time. "Smoking is defined as the burning or vaporizing of tobacco or compounds or solutions."

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, January 25, 2022

POLICY 2050 COMMUNITY USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

SCHOOL FACILITIES

All unauthorized use of school facilities is prohibited. School facilities may be used during non-school hours by district residents for educational, cultural, social, recreational, civic and other legitimate purposes which are open to the general public. Use of facilities, however, will be subject to conditions set forth in this policy and in regulations developed by the Superintendent.

School activities have priority over non-school uses of the buildings on any given date. It should be understood that school events may make it necessary to cancel or postpone previously approved applications.

When admission is charged, the proceeds thereof are to be expended for an educational or charitable purpose only. School facilities may not be used for meetings or activities which are under the exclusive control of, and the proceeds of which are to be applied for the benefit of, a secret society or religious sect. Also, use of school facilities by employees of East Irondequoit Central School District for private instruction will not be allowed when fees are charged.

School facilities may not be used to distribute partisan literature on school issues or votes to students for their parents.

The Board reserves the right to refuse permission for use of school facilities for purposes which it deems harmful to the building, or against existing law. The Board also reserves the right to refuse permission for the use of school facilities to groups whose compliance with the Board's regulations for such use has been unsatisfactory in the past.

The Superintendent will establish regulations for authorizing such use of District facilities (e.g., application and authorization procedures, fees, insurance requirements, etc.).

SCHOOL GROUNDS AND EQUIPMENT

All unauthorized use of school property and equipment is prohibited. The Superintendent will establish regulations for authorizing such use (e.g., application and authorization procedures, fees, insurance requirements, etc.) consistent with the following principles:

•	All District property and equipment are to be used first to further the educational process of the District; any other use must not interfere with this educational process; and
•	Activities which might produce either hazards to people or damage to school property must be supervised by a responsible individual (s).
Board Appr Board Revie	oved 2013 ewed 2016, 2019, January 25, 2022

POLICY 2070 ACCEPTABLE USE OF COMPUTER SYSTEM

All users of the District's computer network and Internet must understand that use is a privilege, not a right, and that use entails responsibility. Students and staff may have internet access for educational and recreational/personal purposes that are consistent with this policy and its regulations. Please note, however, that any recreational/personal use that interferes with a staff member's work for the District or a student's schoolwork or otherwise interferes with any educational use of the system is a violation of this policy.

Both the computer/network equipment and all computerized files (including, but not limited to, programs, documents, e-mail, accessed Web pages, etc.) contained in them are the property of the District. The District will have complete access to all such files to monitor appropriate usage of its Computer System as well as to perform system maintenance from time to time. Consequently, no user of the Computer System should have any expectation of privacy with respect to any computerized file stored in the memory of the System.

Staff will be expected to monitor student usage of the Computer System. The monitoring will include (but will not be limited to) walking around the classroom/library and observing student usage, use of computer equipment (in a computer lab for example) to monitor each student's usage, review of computerized logs of use, etc. The District may notify students and parents of this monitoring.

Generally speaking, the rules which govern both student and staff conduct on an everyday basis are applicable to their conduct while using the Computer System.

The Superintendent is hereby authorized to promulgate regulations which define and establish standards for acceptable use of the Computer System by students and staff, consistent with this policy.

Board Approved 2013, 2016 Board Approved 2016, 2019 Board Revised 2020 Board Reviewed January 25, 2022

POLICY 2080 GIFTS

The School District is prohibited by the State Constitution from giving gifts to any individual or corporation, including its officers and employees. However, the District may give its officers, employees, volunteers, and/or other community members, tokens of appreciation, such as pins and medals, plaques or other similar mementos of nominal value.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, February 15, 2022

POLICY 2090 COMPLIANCE WITH COVID-19 HEALTH AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

The East Irondequoit Central School District is dedicated to protecting the health and safety of all students, staff, visitors, and other members of the local community. For the 2021-2022 school year, because of the prevalence of COVID-19 in the community, the District has developed a reopening plan and this policy in an attempt to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus in our schools.

Students, staff and visitors shall comply with this and all other health and safety policies, plans or procedures now existing or developed in the future in response to COVID-19 as directed by Monroe County Health Department or the County Executive.

As these circumstances are fluid and guidance and requirements may change, the Board of Education may modify this policy on an emergency basis through a single reading.

Board Approved 2020, July 14, 2021, August 19, 2021 Board Revised June 7, 2021, March 1, 2022

POLICY 2100 TEST TO STAY

In accordance with the Monroe County Department of Public Health's decision to allow Test-to-Stay (TTS) protocols, asymptomatic unvaccinated school-based close contacts (e.g. students, teachers, school staff) can avoid school exclusion (but not other restrictions of quarantine) by testing negative through serial testing using rapid NAAT or antigen tests during a seven-day period following exposure.

The protocols of this policy apply to exposures that occur in the school setting and while both the person with COVID-19 and exposed person were consistently and properly masked.

Assuming that the exposed person remains asymptomatic, he/she is allowed to remain in school. However, if the exposed person develops symptoms, they must be immediately excluded from school per current school guidance.

The exposed person must be tested a minimum of three times during the seven-day period following exposure, unless recognition of the exposure is delayed, or weekends or school breaks intervene. The seven-day period is measured in calendar days where the last date of exposure is considered day 0. The first test should be done as soon as possible after exposure is identified (i.e., the first day the student is in school after identified exposure). The Superintendent will approve testing regimens to be administered by designated personnel, in accordance with applicable State and Local law/guidance.

The inability to pay for testing will not prevent a student from being eligible for TTS.

When an individual tests positive, the District will perform contract tracing. If close contacts are identified based on currently recognized procedures, the Monroe County Department of Public Health will be notified.

The exposed person who remains in school through TTS must be quarantined outside of school instruction/academic periods (on weekends/holidays when the seven-day TTS period is still active, but no school test is required; after school/evenings; no community activities or extracurricular participation including clubs, sports, arts/performance activities, etc.).

People participating in TTS are allowed to continue to ride the school bus following all existing guidance, including required masking.

Board Approved: January 11, 2022

POLICY 2110 DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION IN THE DISTRICT

Defining Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

For purposes of this policy:

- a) "Diversity" includes, but is not limited to: race; color; ethnicity; nationality; religion; socioeconomic status; veteran status; education; marital status; language; age; gender; gender expression; gender identity; sexual orientation; mental or physical ability; genetic information; and learning style.
- b) "Equity" includes, but is not limited to, seeking the fair treatment, access, opportunity, and advancement for all while striving to identify and eliminate barriers that have prevented the full participation of all groups.
- c) "Inclusion" includes, but is not limited to, authentically bringing traditionally excluded individuals and/or groups into processes, activities, and decision/policy making in a way that shares power and ensures equal access to opportunities and resources.

These descriptions are not intended to be exhaustive. Rather, they are meant to be foundational and provide clarity to the concepts of diversity, equity, and inclusion.

Governance

DEI Committee

The District has established a DEI Committee that meets periodically throughout the year. The purpose of the DEI Committee is to assist the District in reviewing, creating and implementing plans that advance the District's commitment to maintaining a diverse, equitable, and inclusive environment where all individuals feel valued and respected.

The District will actively seek members for the DEI Committee through the use of email, newsletters, the District's website, personal invites, surveys, the District's social media page(s), and/or advertisements. The DEI Committee will be representative of all stakeholders.

Teaching and Learning

The District will strive to advance inclusive and culturally responsive teaching and learning through, but not limited to, the following means: curricula in all content areas; books and instructional materials; pedagogical practices and professional development; classroom grouping policies and practices; student support systems for all developmental pathways; full and equitable opportunities to learn for all students; and multiple assessment measures. As part of this effort, the District will seek to:

- a) Implement educational practices that embed the ideals of diversity, equity, and inclusion by creating student-centered learning environments.
- b) Develop curricula that is balanced, accurate, and rigorous, and which recognizes and incorporates diverse perspectives, materials, and texts so that students are taught topics not just from one single perspective, but from multiple perspectives.
- c) Offer coherent opportunities for students to actively participate in experiences that prepare them for a lifetime of civic engagement.
- d) Monitor the educational results of students so that the ongoing goal of consistent improvement may be achieved and impediments to the achievement of improved performance may be addressed, whatever their causes.
- e) Regularly evaluate the achievement of the student body, particularly in terms of gender and race, to determine whether any students are being "dis-served" by the programs provided.

Family and Community Engagement

The District will strive to foster family and community engagement practices that are based on mutual trust, confidence, and respect. As part of this effort, the District will seek to:

- a) Encourage participation from all stakeholders in community building conversations.
- b) Reduce language barriers through various means, including, but not limited to, providing translated communications when appropriate.

Workforce Diversity

The District will strive to create a workforce that is not only diverse and inclusive, but one that recognizes and values the differences among people. As part of this effort, the District will seek to:

- a) Recruit and retain a diverse workforce in all areas and at all levels, thereby reflecting the diversity of our student body and community, providing role models for all students to emulate, and preparing students for an increasingly global society.
- b) Provide staff with opportunities for professional development on cultural proficiency.

Diverse Schools and Learning Opportunities

The District will strive to promote diverse, equitable, and inclusive classrooms in which students have equal access and opportunities to learn and realize their full potential. As part of this effort, the District will seek to:

- a) Take steps to eliminate the use of terms and phrases within District schools that perpetuate negative stereotypes and minimize student opportunities.
- b) Create coursework, programs, and activities that are accessible to all students, regardless of their disability status, native language, income level, or any other basis.

Board Approved: March 8, 2022

POLICY 2120 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION

The District is committed to the safety and security of our employees. Workplace violence presents a serious safety hazard to our staff, students and the entire school community.

Workplace violence is defined as any physical assault or act of aggressive behavior occurring where employees perform any work-related duty in the course of their employment including but not limited to an attempt or threat, whether verbal or physical, to inflict physical injury upon an employee; any intentional display of force which would give an employee reason to fear or expect bodily harm; intentional and wrongful physical contact with a person without their consent that entails some injury; or stalking an employee with the intent of causing fear of material harm to the physical safety and health of such employee when such stalking has arisen through and in the course of employment.

All employees are responsible for notifying their supervisor or a contact person designated by the Superintendent of any violent incidents or threatening behavior in the workplace, including threats they have witnessed or received, or have been told that another person has witnessed or received.

All acts of workplace violence will be promptly and thoroughly investigated, and appropriate action will be taken, including contacting law enforcement where necessary.

The District employees, with the participation of authorized employee representatives, will develop and implement a Workplace Violence Prevention Program to comply with the applicable law and its implementing regulations. The Program will include:

- a. A statement regarding the risk factors present in the workplace;
- b. The methods the District will use to prevent incidents of violence in the workplace, including the specifically identified hazards;
- c. A system to report workplace violence incidents in writing;
- d. A written outline for employee training; and
- e. A plan for annual program review.

This policy will be posted where notices to employees are normally posted.

Ref: Labor Law §27-b 12 NYCRR §800.6

Board Approved: January 23, 2024

3000 Series: Students

POLICY 3010 PROGRAMS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

The Board of Education shall provide appropriate programs and maintain records for each child residing in the district identified by the Committee on Special Education (CSE) as having a disability. The following outlines the district plan, program and committee guidelines:

I. District Plans for Special Education Programs and Services

The district will prepare biennial plans describing the full range of its special education programs and services. Such description shall include the number and age span of children served by these programs, the methods of evaluation used, and the program's estimated budget (including date of adoption).

II. Access to School Programs by Students with Disabilities

Each student with a disability residing in the District will have access to and opportunity to participate in the full range of programs and services of this school district, including extracurricular programs and activities, which are available to all other students enrolled in the public schools of the district to the maximum extent appropriate to the needs of the student. Each preschool student with a disability residing in the District shall have the opportunity to participate in district preschool programs, if any.

III. Committee on Special Education; Committee on Preschool Education:

Appointment and Training of Appropriately Qualified Personnel

The Committee on Special Education

The Committee on Special Education ("CSE") shall be designated by the Board of Education on an annual basis to ensure timely evaluation and placement of students with disabilities. The CSE members shall be appointed upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools. Members shall include, but not be limited to, individuals in those positions designated in Section 4402 of the New York State Education Law. The Director of Pupil Personnel Services and the CSE Chairperson shall be designated as the "chairperson" of the CSE.

<u>Subcommittees</u>

The number of Subcommittees on Special Education will be determined by the CSE. The subcommittee on Special Education will be composed of members and have functions consistent with the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education.

The Committee on Pre-School Education

The Committee on Preschool Education ("CPSE") is established to conduct meetings to develop, review and revise the Individualized Education Program of preschool children with a disability in accordance with Article 89 of the New York Education Law and Part 200 of the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education. Members shall include, but not be limited to, those positions designated in Section 4410 of the New York State Education Law.

Training

The Superintendent of Schools or the Superintendent's designee shall establish administrative practices and procedures for training all District personnel who are a member of the CSE or the Committee on Preschool Special Education to carry out the functions related the District's obligations under Part 200 of the Commissioner's Regulations.

IV. Operation of Educational Programs for Students with Disabilities

The special education programs shall be operated in accordance with the regulations of the Commissioner of Education.

The CSE shall recommend the provision of special education services in the least restrictive environment appropriate for the student and, where grouped in a special education class with other students with a disability, with students of similar individual needs.

The District will provide special services and/or programs to the extent appropriate to the needs of each student with a disability to enable the child to participate in regular education services to the extent appropriate and to be involved in and progress in the general education curriculum. In developing each IEP, the CSE is to consider programs and services appropriate to the needs of each student so that the student may participate in and progress in the general education curriculum.

The Superintendent of Schools or the Superintendent's designee shall establish administrative practices and procedures to provide students with the special education services specified on the student's IEP and, subject to the Board of Education's right to return a recommendation to the original or new CSE if it disagrees with a recommendation of the CSE, to arrange for those services to be implemented within 60 days of receipt of the parent's consent to evaluate or referral to the CSE for review.

Appropriate modifications to instructional techniques and materials shall be prescribed on the student's IEP.

V. Consent for Evaluation.

The Superintendent of Schools or the Superintendent's designee is responsible for establishing administrative practices and procedures for the purpose of ensuring that parents of school age and preschool children receive the request for consent for evaluation prior to any evaluation and that they understand the request.

VI. Confidentiality of Personally Identifiable Data, Information or Records Pertaining to a Student with a Disability.

The Superintendent of Schools or the Superintendent's designee is responsible for establishing administrative practices and procedures for ensuring the confidentiality of personally identifiable data, information, or records pertaining to a student with a disability consistent with Part 200 of the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education, the Regulations promulgated pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and Regulations promulgated thereto.

VII. Pre-referral Interventions.

The Superintendent of Schools or the Superintendent's designee is responsible for establishing administrative plans, practices and procedures for implementing school-wide approaches and pre-referral interventions in order to remediate a student's performance prior to referral for special education.

VIII. Declassification.

The Superintendent of Schools or the Superintendent's designee is responsible for establishing administrative plans and practices for the appropriate declassification of students with disabilities. Such plan and practice shall include, at the minimum, that students with disabilities be regularly considered for declassification when believed by any member of the CSE to be appropriate and, at least, as part of the three-year re-evaluation. Such plan and practice shall also provide that no student will be declassified without a prior reevaluation and that the student will be provided appropriate educational and support services upon declassification.

IX. Impartial Hearing Officers.

In the event that a request for a due process hearing is made and is not resolved in a resolution session, the Board of Education will arrange for an impartial hearing to be held. The Board of Education shall appoint an impartial hearing officer from the list of impartial hearing officers maintained by the State Education Department available to serve in Monroe County in accordance with the alphabetical rotational selection process established by the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education. The President and Vice President of the Board of Education are each designated to appoint the impartial hearing officer if the a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board is not to occur within 24 hours of the impartial hearing officer selection. The Board of Education shall report information relating to the impartial hearing process to the Impartial Hearing Reporting System (IHRS).

Impartial hearing officers shall be compensated at the hourly rate allowable by State law for prehearing, hearing and post-hearing activities. They shall be reimbursed for travel expenses at the IRS travel rate plus tolls or the cost of alternative transportation, whichever is less, and for reasonable lodging and meal expenses, when necessary, upon presentation of an invoice therefore.

X. Instructional Materials in Usable Alternative Format.

The Superintendent of Schools or the Superintendent's designee is responsible for establishing and implementing a plan to make all instructional materials to be used in the District's schools available in a usable alternative format consistent with the National Instructional Materials Accessibility Standards to all students with a disability in accordance with the student's educational needs and course selections at the same time that such materials are available to non-disabled students. Alternative format includes any medium or format for the presentation of instructional materials, other than a traditional print textbook, that is needed as an accommodation for a student with a disability enrolled in the District, including but not limited to Braille, large print, open and closed captioned, audio or electronic file. Electronic files must be compatible with at least one alternative format conversion software program that is appropriate to meet the student's needs.

The plan shall (1) give a preference in the purchase of instructional materials to those vendors who agree to provide such materials in alternative formats; (2) specify, when an electronic file is provided, how the format will be accessed by students and/or how the district will convert to the accessible format; (3) specify the process to be used when ordering materials to identify the needs of students with disabilities for alternative format materials; (4) specifying ordering timelines to ensure that alternative format materials are available at the same time as regular format materials; and (5) include procedures to initiate the process to obtain materials in alternative formats without delay when a student with a disability moves into the school district during the school year and needs the same.

XI. Providing Teachers and Service Providers with a Copy of the IEP

Each regular education teacher, special education teacher, related service provider and/or other service provider, including representatives of another public school district, BOCES, or other facility where a student receives IEP services, who is responsible for implementing an IEP is to be provided a paper or electronic copy of that IEP, as well as any amendments thereto, prior to its implementation. Individuals responsible for implementation of a student's IEP shall also be notified and trained how to access an IEP electronically.

The CSE Chairperson is to designate for each student with a disability one, or as appropriate, more than one professional employee of the District with knowledge of the student's disability and education program to inform each regular education teacher, special education teacher, related service provider, teacher assistant, teacher's aide, and other provider or support staff person assisting in the implementation of the IEP of his or her responsibility to implement the recommendations on a student's IEP, including the responsibility to provide specific accommodations, program modifications, supports and / or services in accordance with the IEP. That professional employee is to maintain a record of each individual to whom such information is provided.

The IEP shall continue to remain confidential and shall not be disclosed or re-disclosed to any other person except in accordance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. Procedures will be established to ensure that copies of students' IEPs are stored in secure locations and retrieved or destroyed when such professionals are

no longer responsible for implementing the IEP.

XII. Highly Qualified Personnel.

To meet the needs of students with disabilities and to provide them access to the general education curriculum, including the challenging expectations that have been established for all students, to the maximum extent appropriate, the Board of Education is committed to recruit, hire, train and retain highly qualified personnel to provide special education programs and services. To that end, the District

will take the following measurable steps:

Follow the district Professional Development Plan

Provide a teacher mentor program

XIII.District Wide Assessments

To the extent feasible, universal design principles (thereby allowing use by students with the widest range of functional capabilities, with and without assistive technology) will be used in developing and administering the District-wide assessment program according to the following:

504 Plan

IEP Test Accommodations

Ref:

8 NYCRR 200.

Board Approved 2010, 2014 Board Reviewed 2017, 2020 Board Revised November 29, 2022

POLICY 3030 INDEPENDENT EDUCATIONAL EVALUATIONS

Parents/guardians of a student with a disability (or a student who is thought to have disability) have the right to receive an "independent educational evaluation" of their child if they disagree with the evaluation obtained by the Committee on Special Education (CSE) or the Committee on Preschool Special Education (CPSE). This evaluation will be paid for by the District pursuant to the terms of this policy and any associated administrative regulation.

The independent evaluation must be conducted by a qualified examiner who is not employed by the District. Upon request, parents will be provided with a list of public and private agencies and professional resources where independent evaluations may be obtained. These publicly-funded independent evaluations will be limited to the same geographic and fiscal limitations as used by the District when it initiates an evaluation.

Parents or guardians should file a written request for an independent evaluation within 90 days from the date of the CSE or CPSE evaluation. The District has the right to initiate an impartial hearing to demonstrate that its evaluation is appropriate or that the evaluation obtained by the parent or guardian does not meet the District's criteria. If the hearing officer determines that the District's evaluation was appropriate, a parent or guardian is not entitled to reimbursement at public expense.

The Board directs the Superintendent to develop regulations establishing the geographic area in which such evaluations may take place, and minimum qualifications of the professional who administer and interpret various tests; and a reasonable timeline for seeking reimbursement.

POLICY 3040 REGARDING RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION "RTI"

In accordance with regulations of the Commissioner of Education, The Board of Education of the **East Irondequoit Central** School District adopts the following policy and procedures to identify those students in Grades K – 5 who are not making academic progress at the expected rate, to provide targeted interventions and instruction matched to those students' needs, and to determine whether each of those students responds to scientific, research-based instruction or whether a school-based referral of the child to the Committee on Special Education as a student suspected to have an educational disability is warranted. Such procedures shall include, as part of the District's general education program, a process referred to as Response to Intervention (RTI).

It is the intent of the Board of Education that there be a district-wide multi-tiered RTI model **that** allows each school the flexibility to determine interventions specific to it's population.

The basic components of the RTI process shall include:

- Scientific, research-based core instruction in reading and mathematics by qualified
 personnel for all students in the general education class. Reading instruction shall
 include scientific research-based reading programs that include explicit and systematic
 instruction in strategies to increase students' phonemic awareness, phonics, vocabulary
 development, reading fluency and reading comprehension.
- Screening for all students in **Grades K-5** at least three (3) times per year to identify those students who are not making academic progress at the expected rate.
- Research-based interventions matched to the student's targeted need at increasing levels of intensity for those students who do not make satisfactory progress in age or grade level standards.
- Repeated assessments of targeted skill areas using curriculum-based measures to determine if interventions are resulting in student progress toward age or grade level standards.
- A building-based Instructional Support Team ("IST") to establish at-risk criteria, to
 review screening data, and to make decisions related to the criteria for determining the
 levels of intervention, types of interventions, and amount and nature of student
 performance data to be collected and the manner and frequency for progress
 monitoring.

Each IST will be comprised of the following: a general education teacher to serve as IST Coordinator, one general education teacher from each grade level, a special education teacher, reading specialist, building administrator and educational services personnel appropriate to the student. Other staff members may be included depending on the case being reviewed. The Team shall convene to conduct the following tasks:

- 1. Identifying the interventions appropriate for each level of the tiered model and the criteria for movement in and out of each level consistent with Regulations developed by the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee;
- 2. Reviewing and analyzing data collected pursuant to this policy;
- 3. Making decisions regarding the appropriateness of the interventions used and the grouping of students to maximize effectiveness;
- 4. Recommending changes in students' instructional programs based upon the analysis of the data
- 5. Determining whether students are making progress and when or if a referral to the CSE is appropriate

Written notice to the parents when the student requires an intervention beyond that provided to all students in the general education classroom that provides information about:

- The techniques, strategies, and/or programs that will be used to address deficit areas to increase the student's rate of learning and performance level
- The amount and nature of the student performance data that will be collected and the general education services that will be provided
- The parents' right to request an evaluation for special education

The Superintendent of Schools shall be responsible to ensure that staff have the knowledge and skills necessary to implement a RTI program and that the RTI program is implemented in accordance with this Policy and the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education.

Board Approved 2011 Board Reviewed 2014, 2017, 2020, November 8, 2022

POLICY 3050 ADOPTION OF COURSES & CURRICULUM, SELECTION OF TEXTBOOKS/LIBRARY MATERIALS

The Board of Education is responsible for <u>the adoption of courses and curriculum</u>, and the selection and designation of all textbooks to be used in the district schools. The Superintendent of Schools will recommend suitable lists of textbooks for the Board's consideration.

The Superintendent will establish procedures *for the adoption of courses and curriculum,* and for the selection and recommendation of textbooks and a method for selecting staff members who will serve in the selection and recommendation process.

The selection of library materials is delegated by the Board to the Superintendent of Schools, who may further delegate to appropriate staff. Any objections to textbooks or library materials may be made pursuant to administrative regulation concerning complaints about curriculum and instructional materials.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, November 29, 2022

POLICY 3060 INTERNET SAFETY POLICY

Filtering. Pursuant to the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA), filtering software will be used to block minors' access to:

- visual depictions that are (a) obscene, (b) child pornography, or (c) harmful to minors; and
- Internet sites which, in the Board's determination, contain material which is "inappropriate for minors." (See below.)

Adult access to visual depictions that are obscene and/or child pornography will also be blocked. However, the Superintendent or his/her designee may disable the software to enable access to blocked sites for bona fide research or other lawful purposes.

Matter Inappropriate for Minors. The Board will (as it deems appropriate) determine by resolution what Internet material is "inappropriate for minors" in the District. This determination will be based on community standards.

Safety of Minors When Using Direct Electronic Communications. In using the computer network and Internet, minors are not permitted to reveal personal information (such as home addresses, telephone numbers, their real last names or any other information which might allow someone they are communicating with online to locate them) without appropriate supervision. No minor may arrange a face-to-face meeting with someone he/she "meets" on the computer network or Internet without his/her parent's permission.

Unauthorized Access and Other Unlawful Activities. It is a violation of this Policy to:

- use the School's computer network or the Internet to gain unauthorized access to other computers or computer systems, or to attempt to gain such unauthorized access;
- damage, disable or otherwise interfere with the operation of computers, computer systems, software or related equipment through physical action or by electronic means; and/or
- violate state or federal law relating to copyright, trade secrets, the distribution of obscene or pornographic materials, or any other applicable law or municipal ordinance.

Unauthorized Disclosure and Dissemination of Personal Identification Information Regarding Minors. Personally identifiable information concerning minors may not be disclosed or used in any way on the Internet (e.g., on the District's web page or otherwise) without the permission of a parent or guardian. If a student is 18 or over, the permission may also come directly from the student.

Instruction on Internet Social Interaction and Cyberbullying. The District will educate students about appropriate online behavior, including interacting with other individuals on social networking websites/chat rooms as well as cyberbullying awareness and response.

Monitoring. Those responsible for supervising minors while using District computers will also be responsible for monitoring their online activities by circulating throughout the area where the computers are located and directly observing the nature of those activities.

Regulations and Dissemination. The Superintendent is authorized to develop and implement regulations consistent with this policy. The Superintendent will also be responsible for disseminating the policy and associated regulations to school personnel and students.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2012, 2014, 2017 Board Revised 2020 Board Reviewed November 29, 2022

POLICY 3070 FIELD TRIPS AND EXCURSIONS

The Board supports and encourages a comprehensive educational program that includes student trips for educational purposes.

Factors relevant in consideration of approval of such field trips may include the relationship to the curriculum, the distance of the trip, the availability of transportation, cost involved and weather conditions. "Appropriate and acceptable behavior of students" as described on the School Conduct and Discipline Code is required in order to participate in the field trip/excursion.

FIELD TRIP/EXCURSION TRANSPORTATION

When the district provides transportation to students on a school-sponsored field trip, extracurricular activity, or other similar event, the school district will return all students to their point of departure or to the appropriate school in the district, unless the student's parent(s) or legal guardian(s) provides the school district with written notice authorizing an alternative form of return transportation for his or her child. Except in emergency situations, the written notice should be given prior to the departure of the district vehicle for the event. If intervening circumstances make such transportation of any one or more students impracticable, then a representative of the school district will remain with the student until the parent(s) or legal guardian(s) has been contacted and informed of the intervening circumstances and the student has been delivered to his or her parent(s) or legal guardian(s).

The Superintendent is authorized to promulgate regulations consistent with this policy.

Board Approved 2008 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, November 29, 2022

POLICY 3080 SCHOOL VOLUNTEERS

Services of volunteers may be authorized only by the Superintendent of Schools, central office administrators, or building principals and such authorization may be revoked at any time.

Volunteers may come from all backgrounds and age groups and may include any persons willing to give their time for the purpose of helping children through planned auxiliary services. Volunteers may be involved in many facets of school operations, from mentor/tutor relationships to clerical tasks. School personnel who are responsible for tasks or projects that will make use of volunteers will identify appropriate tasks and time schedules for such activities, as well as make provisions for adequate supervision, in-service programs, and evaluation. Any information gained through volunteering must be held in strict confidence with the principal/designee assuring that the volunteer has no access to confidential student or personnel data.

Volunteers are required to act in accordance with district policies, regulations, and school rules. Any staff member who supervises volunteers may ask any volunteer who violates district policies, regulations or school rules to leave school grounds.

Board Approved 2011 Board Reviewed 2014, 2017, 2020, November 29, 2022

POLICY 3090 STUDENT ASSESSMENT

Student assessment is an integral part of the instructional program and will incorporate a variety of strategies designed to allow students to demonstrate their level of performance.

The purposes of student assessment are to:

- Provide the student and teacher with information regarding learning progress
- Establish student instructional goals
- Monitor student growth
- Adjust instructional strategies
- Communicate student achievement to parents or persons in parental relation to the student
- Report district-wide student achievement results to the Board of Education and the public
- Evaluate program

The Superintendent of Schools is authorized to promulgate regulations implementing this policy.

POLICY 3100 GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

The Board will determine the graduation requirements for the school district in accordance with any specific Regulations of the Commissioner of Education. The Superintendent of Schools will promulgate regulations setting forth diploma requirements.

EARLY GRADUATION

Early graduation may be accomplished upon fulfillment of requirements with approval of the parent or person in parental relation to the student and upon notice to the guidance department and upon approval of the High School Principal.

CAREER DEVELOPMENT AND OCCUPATIONAL STUDIES COMMENCEMENT CREDENTIAL OR SKILLS AND ACHIEVEMENT COMMENCEMENT CREDENTIAL

Students who have earned either a Career Development and Occupational Studies Commencement Credential (CDOS) or Skills and Achievement Commencement Credential (SACC) by the time their ninth-grade cohort reaches graduation may, but are not required to, participate in that graduation ceremony and related activities.

If students who participate in the graduation ceremony by earning a CDOS or SACC only subsequently meet the requirements for either a Regents or local high school diploma, they may participate in the graduation ceremony of that graduating class as well.

Students who participate in graduation ceremonies by earning only a CDOS or SACC are entitled to continue their educational program until the end of school year in which they turn 21 years old, or until they earn a Regents or local high school diploma, whichever is earlier.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020 Board Revised January 10, 2023

POLICY 3110 PARENT AND FAMILY ENGAGEMENT (TITLE I POLICY)

The District strongly encourages parent and family member engagement in all school programs. The District believes that a partnership between school and parents/families is essential for the success of all students in every aspect of their education.

The District and the Title I Coordinator will work to involve parents and families in the development of all Federal and State grants. The District will work with the PTA/PTSA units to identify parent/family representatives from each school to meet at least once a year with the Title I Coordinator to review the Title I program. Through District and Building Level Site Based Teams, parents and family members also will participate in the process for developing either a comprehensive or targeted "support and improvement plan" when the school their child attends is identified by the State as needing this plan.

Through coordinated efforts by the Office of Instruction, building principals, Site Based teams and PTA/PTSA Representatives, the District will assist all schools in planning and implementing effective parent/family involvement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance. Collaboratively these parties will provide assistance to parents/families in understanding such topics as the challenging State academic standards, State and local academic assessments, how to monitor a child's progress, and how to work with educators to improve the achievement of their student. Various assessment tools, effective practices information and resource support programs for parents/families will be used to implement these activities.

The District will send information related to school and parent/family programs, meetings, and other activities to the parents/families in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the families can understand.

The District will support parents/family members in understanding State and local academic achievement standards and assessments as well as Title I requirements. The District will provide materials and training to help parents/families improve their children's academic, social and emotional growth through literacy training, technology use and understanding of learning styles, strategies, health and safety issues.

The District shall educate teachers, specialized instruction support personnel, principals, and other school leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of families, in the value and utility of contributions of parents/families, and in how to reach out to, communicate with, and work with families as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent programs, and build ties between the families and the school. Parent representation will be sought, when applicable for district-wide committees.

With input from parents/families the District will provide professional development to all District staff regarding parent/family engagement. Examples of professional development may include how to reach out to, communicate with, and work together as equal partners with parents/families,

ways to implement parent/family programs, and how to build home school relationships. The district will publicize and share invitations to families about events and/or meetings, and as applicable share agendas for such. Sign-in sheets at meetings and training events including name and position/title will be maintained. Minutes of meetings/events, as applicable will be maintained. Letters, newsletters, and other printed information will be catalogued and available to families.

The District will conduct an annual evaluation, likely through a survey, of the content and effectiveness of the parent and family engagement policy in improving the academic quality of all schools and identify barriers to greater participation by parents/families (with particular attention to families who are economically disadvantaged, are disabled, have limited English proficiency, have limited literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority background). The District will conduct an annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of the parent and family engagement policy in identifying needs of parents/families to assist with the learning of their children and identify strategies to support successful school and family interactions. Findings from this evaluation will be used to design evidence-based strategies for more effective family engagement and to revise, if necessary, the parent and family engagement policies.

Board Approved 2014 Board Reviewed 2017, 2020, December 13, 2022 Board Revised March 23, 2021

POLICY 3120 OBJECTION TO INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

The Board has authority to prescribe curriculum in the District and to designate the textbooks to be used in the District, and may not be compelled to use a particular textbook or discontinue the use of a particular textbook. Nevertheless, the Board recognizes the importance of allowing District community members to voice concerns and objections about instructional materials.

For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:

"Instructional material" means any print or non-print material with instructional content or an instructional function that is used to facilitate formal or informal learning either in the classroom, library media center, or elsewhere in the District. Examples of instructional materials include, but are not limited to: textbooks (including books or book substitutes, workbooks or manuals; courseware or other content-based instructional materials in an electronic format); workbooks; hardcover and paperback books; ebooks; online databases; DVDs; streaming videos; sound recordings; magazines; newspapers; pamphlets; pictures; charts; games; kits; maps; models; microforms; slides; specimens; and transparencies.

"Library material" means any print or non-print material which is catalogued and processed as part of the library media center for voluntary use by students and staff. Examples of library materials include but are not limited to hardcover and paperback books; ebooks; online databases; DVDs; streaming videos; sound recordings; magazines; newspapers; pamphlets; pictures; charts; games; kits; maps; models; microforms; slides; specimens; and transparencies.

The Board recognizes that a District community member may have questions, concerns or objections about instructional materials, and may wish to have instructional materials re-considered and/or removed from the program of instruction, library/media center(s) and/or departmental collections.

All questions, concerns or objections regarding instructional materials will be processed through the procedures described below as well as any other applicable Board policies.

ALL INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS SHALL REMAIN IN USE UNTIL THE APPROPRIATE PROCEDURES HAVE BEEN CARRIED OUT AND, IF APPLICABLE, THE COMMITTEE RENDERS A DECISION.

District community members who have concerns about instructional materials are encouraged to bring these questions and concerns to the appropriate instructional staff and/or school library media specialist. If an individual's inquiry or concern is not able to be satisfactorily resolved by that staff member, then the staff member will refer that individual to the building Principal. The Principal will attempt to resolve the individual's concern and direct them to the Request for Re-Evaluation of Instructional Materials where appropriate.

Procedures for objecting to instructional materials, including appeals wh	
forth in administrative regulation promulgated by the Superintendent or his/her	designee.
Board Approved October 3, 2023	
σοσια Αρριονέα October 3, 2023	

POLICY 3130 INSTRUCTION FOR STUDENTS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY

It is the District's philosophy to educate students with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) in the least restrictive environment, and to provide them with full access to a free-standing English as a Second Language program taught by duly certified English as a Second Language (ESL) teachers.

The Superintendent will develop and implement administrative regulations designed to:

- Screen pupils for LEP pursuant to Part 117 of the Commissioner's regulations;
- Identify such pupils with LEP; and
- Annually evaluate each such pupil's performance in content areas to measure the pupil's academic progress.
- Provide a description by building of the curricular and extracurricular services provided to pupils with LEP.
- Provide a description of the district and school level procedures for the management of the program, including staffing, site selection, parental notification, coordination of funds, training and program planning.

The Board fully supports the full access of LEP students to all appropriate instructional and support services offered within the District (including guidance programs pursuant to section 100.2[j] of the Commissioner's regulations), including equal opportunities to participate in all school programs and extracurricular activities.

In cases where a LEP student is suspected of having a disability and a referral is made to the Committee on Special Education, a bilingual multi-disciplinary assessment will be conducted to assure that a comprehensive, appropriate evaluation is provided.

In order to enhance communication regarding school-related programs and activities, the District will make every effort to communicate with the parents of LEP students in a language they understand. Further, this will include the use of interpreters, when appropriate, for parent conferences and other meetings such as those held by the Committee on Special Education.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, December 13, 2022

POLICY 3140 STUDENT HARASSMENT AND BULLYING PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION

The Board of Education prohibits all acts of discrimination, harassment and bullying (including "cyber-bullying") of students as well as retaliation by other students, school officers/employees, volunteers, vendors or visitors on school property or at school functions. The same actions occurring off-campus are also prohibited if the action or actions adversely affect the educative process and/or endangers the health, safety or morals of students and may be subject to disciplinary consequences.

DEFINITIONS

Bullying

Bullying is a form of harassment that consists of inappropriate persistent behavior including, but not limited to: threats of intimidation of others, treating others cruelly, terrorizing, coercing, stalking, or habitual put-downs and/or badgering of others, whether done directly, indirectly, face-to-face or remotely through electronic communication (i.e., "cyber-bullying"). In order to facilitate implementation of this policy, provide meaningful guidance and prevent behaviors from rising to a violation of law, this policy will use the term bullying (which is usually subsumed under the term "harassment") to describe a range of misbehaviors such as harassment, hazing, intimidation or discrimination. The accompanying regulation provides more guidance regarding the definition and characteristics of bullying and other misconduct prohibited by this policy.

Cyber-bullying

Cyber-bullying is a form of bullying which occurs via electronic communication on the Internet, on cellular phones or other electronic media. It can involve, but is not limited to: sending mean, vulgar, or threatening messages or images; posting sensitive, private information about another person; pretending to be someone else in order to make that person look bad.

Discrimination

Discrimination is the act of denying rights, benefits, equitable treatment or access to facilities available to all others, to an individual or group of people because of the group, class or category to which that person belongs (as enumerated in the *Definitions* section, under Harassment, below).

Hazing

Hazing is a form of harassment among students defined as any intentional or reckless act directed against another for the induction, initiation or membership process in any school sponsored activity, organization, club, or team involving harassment which produces public humiliation,

physical or emotional discomfort, bodily injury or public ridicule. Hazing of a student includes soliciting, encouraging, aiding, or engaging in "hazing" behavior as defined pursuant to District policy, regulation and/or law. Hazing is demeaning, abusive and/or illegal behavior that harms victims, and is inconsistent with the educational goals of the District by negatively impacting the school environment. Hazing of a student by another student or group of students is strictly prohibited on school property; in school buildings; on school buses; by school sponsored groups, clubs or teams; and at school sponsored events and/or activities whether occurring on or off-campus.

Harassment

Harassment has been defined in various ways in federal and state laws and regulations. The Board recognizes that these definitions are important standards, but the Board's goal is to prevent misbehavior from escalating in order to promote a positive school environment and to limit liability. The Dignity for All Students Act (§§10-18 of Education Law) defines harassment as the creation of a hostile environment by conduct or by verbal threats, intimidation or abuse that has or would have the effect of unreasonably and substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, opportunities or benefits, or mental, emotional or physical well-being; or conduct, verbal threats, intimidation or abuse that reasonably causes or would reasonably be expected to cause a student to fear for his or her physical safety. The harassing behavior may be based on any characteristic, including but not limited to a person's actual or perceived:

- race,
- color,
- weight,
- national origin,
- ethnic group,
- religion,
- religious practice,
- disability,
- sex,
- sexual orientation, or
- gender (including gender identity and expression)

In some instances, bullying or harassment may constitute a violation of an individual's civil rights. The District is mindful of its responsibilities under the law and in accordance with District policy regarding civil rights protections.

Retaliation

Retaliation is a separate and distinct violation of this policy in which any employee, student, or visitor mistreats any person because he/she reported in good faith, testified about, or otherwise assisted in an investigation, proceeding or hearing related to alleged harassment or bullying.

School Property

School Property means in or within any building, structure, athletic playing field, playground, parking lot, or land contained within the real property boundary line of a public elementary or secondary school; or in or on a school bus or other school vehicle.

School Function

School Function means a school-sponsored extracurricular event or activity.

DIGNITY ACT COORDINATOR

The Board of Education shall designate at least (1) staff member at every school building to be thoroughly trained to handle human relations in the area of race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practices, disability, sexual orientation, gender, gender expression and other characteristics protected by applicable federal, state and local laws (the Dignity Act Coordinator).

In the event a Dignity Act Coordinator vacates his or her position, another school employee shall be immediately designated for an interim appointment as Dignity Act Coordinator, pending approval of a successor Coordinator by the applicable governing body within 30 days of the date the position was vacated. In the event a Dignity Act Coordinator is unable to perform the duties of his or her position for an extended period of time, another school employee shall be immediately designated for an interim appointment as the Dignity Act Coordinator, pending return of the previous Dignity Act Coordinator to his or her duties.

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

The Superintendent will establish regulations consistent with this policy designed to:

- Further define harassment/bullying/retaliation (giving specific examples thereof);
- Prevent harassment/bullying/retaliation of students;
- Provide students/parents with easy-to-follow complaint procedures for reporting harassing/bullying/retaliatory conduct;
- Provide means for stopping harassing/bullying/retaliatory conduct;
- Provide for immediate and thorough investigations of all complaints;
- Take corrective action if harassing/bullying/retaliatory conduct is discovered; and
- Prevent retaliation against those who make good faith reports of harassing/bullying conduct or assist in an investigation related to same

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2017, 2020 Board Revised February 7, 2023

POLICY 3150 SCHOOL ATTENDANCE AREAS

The Board of Education establishes or modifies attendance areas for district schools. All students are required to attend the school designated for their attendance area except as follows:

- as designated by the Committee on Special Education;
- pursuant to a transfer as ordered by the Superintendent of Schools for disciplinary or educational reasons.

In the event that a family moves from one attendance area to another within the district during the school year, the student may continue to attend his/her present school for the remainder of that year but the family must provide any necessary transportation.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, January 24, 2023

POLICY 3160 AGE OF ENTRANCE A resident child must be at least five years old by December 1 of the school year of entry to be admitted to kindergarten during that school year. Board Approved 2003

Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, January 24, 2023

POLICY 3170 TRANSFER STUDENTS UNDER DISCIPLINARY PENALTY

When a student under a disciplinary penalty from another district transfers into East Irondequoit, the Superintendent will require the building principal and hearing officer to review the records of the student. After reviewing the records, a recommendation for educational placement will be given to the Superintendent. The recommendation will be based upon a review of the District's Code of Conduct, any transfer records, the charges and discipline imposed by the previous district, taking care to safeguard the student's due process rights.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020 Board Revised March 7, 2023

POLICY 3180 NON-RESIDENT STUDENTS

Students residing outside the East Irondequoit Central School District will not be allowed to enroll in the School District except with specific approval of the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee. Acceptance will be on a yearly basis. Tuition will be computed annually according to an established formula consistent with any applicable state law and/or the Commissioner's regulations.

The Superintendent also is to establish rules and regulations setting forth the conditions under which non-resident students will be admitted to the District for short periods without tuition.

There must be agreement by the Superintendent that the student will benefit from such placement and that space and facilities are available for the placement.

Students, in good standing, as described in the Code of Conduct, attending the District as residents, who subsequently move out of the district after April 1, may be allowed to complete the school year, with approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee. The District will not, however, provide transportation to such students. This approval may be revoked at any time by the Superintendent or his/her designee for due cause upon three business days written notice providing opportunity to respond to the decision maker regarding the reason (s) for revocation.

Students, in good standing, as described in the Code of Conduct, who successfully complete all requirements and credits to become a senior and then move from the district may be allowed to attend Eastridge for their senior year tuition free with approval of Superintendent or his/her designee. The District will not provide transportation to such students. This approval may be revoked at any time by the Superintendent or his/her designee for due cause upon three business days written notice providing opportunity to respond to the decision maker regarding the reason (s) for revocation.

Board Approved 2008, 2011 Board Reviewed 2014, 2017, 2020, February 7, 2023

POLICY 3190 COMPREHENSIVE STUDENT ATTENDANCE

STATEMENT OF OVERALL OBJECTIVES

School attendance is both a right and a responsibility. The School District is an active partner with students and parents in the task of helping all students meet or exceed the New York State Learning Standards. Because the School District recognizes that consistent school attendance, academic success and school completion have a positive correlation, the School District will develop, review and, if necessary, revise a Comprehensive Student Attendance Policy to meet the following objectives:

- A) To increase school completion for all students;
- B) To raise student achievement and close gaps in student performance;
- C) To identify attendance patterns in order to design attendance improvement efforts;
- D) To know the whereabouts of every student for safety and other reasons;
- E) To verify that individual students are complying with education laws relating to compulsory attendance;
- F) To determine the District's average daily attendance for State aid purposes.

DESCRIPTION OF STRATEGIES TO MEET OBJECTIVES

The School District will:

- A) Create and maintain a positive school building culture by fostering a positive physical and psychological environment where the presence of strong adult role models encourages respectful and nurturing interactions between adults and students. This positive school culture is aimed at encouraging a high level of student bonding to the school, which in turn should lead to increased attendance.
- B) Maintain accurate recordkeeping via a Register of Attendance to record attendance, absence, tardiness or early departure of each student.
- C) Utilize data analysis systems for tracking individual student attendance and individual and group trends in student attendance problems.
- D) Develop early intervention strategies to improve school attendance for all students.

DETERMINATION OF EXCUSED AND UNEXCUSED ABSENCES, TARDINESS AND EARLY DEPARTURES

Based upon our District's education and community needs, values and priorities, the School District has determined that absences, tardiness and early departures will be considered excused or unexcused according to the following standards. See attached attendance code description.

- A) **Excused:** An absence, tardiness or early departure may be excused if due to personal illness, illness or death in the family, impassable roads due to inclement weather, religious observance, quarantine, required court appearances, attendance at health clinics, approved college visits, obtaining learner's permit, road test, approved cooperative work programs, military obligations or other such reasons as may be approved by the Board of Education.
- B) **Unexcused:** An absence, tardiness or early departure is considered unexcused if the reason for the lack of attendance does not fall into the above categories (including, but not limited to, family vacation, hunting, babysitting, haircut, oversleeping).

STUDENT ATTENDANCE RECORDKEEPING/DATA COLLECTION

The record of each student's presence, absence, tardiness and early departure shall be kept in a register of attendance in a manner consistent with Commissioner's Regulations. An absence, tardiness or early departure will be entered as "excused" or "unexcused" along with the District code for the reason.

Attendance shall be taken and recorded in accordance with the following:

- A) For students in non-departmentalized kindergarten through grade five (i.e., self-contained classrooms and supervised group movement to other scheduled school activities such as physical education in the gym, assembly, etc.), such student's presence or absence shall be recorded after the taking of attendance once per school day.
- B) For students in grades six through twelve or in departmentalized schools at any grade level (i.e., students pass individually to different classes throughout the day), each student's presence or absence shall be recorded after the taking of attendance in each period of scheduled instruction except that where students do not change classrooms for each period of scheduled instruction, attendance shall be taken in accordance with paragraph "a" above
- C) Any absence for a school day or portion thereof shall be recorded as excused or unexcused in accordance with the standards articulated in this policy.
- D) In the event that a student at any instructional level from kindergarten through grade twelve arrives late for or departs early from scheduled instruction, such tardiness or early departure shall be recorded as excused or unexcused in accordance with the standards articulated in this policy.

A record shall be kept of each scheduled day of instruction during which the school is closed for all or part of the day because of extraordinary circumstances including adverse weather conditions, impairment of heating facilities, insufficiency of water supply, shortage of fuel, destruction of or damage to a school building, or such other cause as may be found satisfactory to the Commissioner of Education.

At the conclusion of each class period or school day, all attendance information shall be compiled and provided to the designated school personnel who are responsible for attendance. The nature of the absence, tardiness or early departure shall be coded on a student's record in accordance with the established District/building procedures.

Attendance records shall also indicate the date when a student withdraws from enrollment or is dropped from enrollment in accordance with Education Law Section 3202(1-a).

STUDENT ATTENDANCE

The District believes that classroom participation is related to and affects a student's performance and grasp of the subject matter and, as such, is properly reflected in a student's final grade. For purposes of this policy, classroom participation means that a student is in class and prepared to work.

Consequently, for each marking period a certain percentage of a student's final grade will be based on classroom participation as well as the student's performance on homework, tests, papers, projects, etc. as determined by the building administrator and/or classroom teacher.

Students are expected to attend all scheduled classes. Consistent with the importance of classroom participation, unexcused student absences, tardiness, and early departures will affect a student's grade, including credit for classroom participation, for the marking period.

INCENTIVES

Each school, where administration deems appropriate, may develop positive student incentives to encourage good attendance. Likewise, the district may also choose to design and implement systems that acknowledge a student's effort to maintain or improve school attendance.

Examples of Incentives:

- A) Community donated gifts are given or raffled to students who meet attendance standards.
- B) Students who meet the attendance standard can eat in a special area or with a special person in the school.
- C) Field trip arranged for students who meet the attendance standards.
- D) Participation in extra curricula activities for the students who meet attendance standards.

- E) Recognition award for 100% attendance each term.
- F) Students with perfect attendance selected to park in choice locations
- G) Attendance record used when considering issuance of working papers.

NOTICE OF STUDENTS WHO ARE ABSENT, TARDY OR DEPART EARLY WITHOUT PROPER EXCUSE

A designated staff member shall notify by telephone the parent/person in parental relation to a student who is absent, tardy or departs early without proper excuse. The staff member shall explain the importance of good attendance and review key elements of the policy with parents related to student achievement. If the parent/person in parental relation cannot be reached by telephone, the staff member will provide such notification by mail. Further, the District's Attendance Policy will be mailed to the parent/person in parental relation to promote awareness and compliance with the policy.

If deemed necessary by appropriate school officials, or if requested by the parent/person in parental relation, a school conference shall be scheduled between the parent/person in parental relation and appropriate staff members in order to address the student's attendance. The student may also be requested to attend this conference in order to address appropriate intervention strategies that best meet the needs of the student.

DISCIPLINARY CONSEQUENCES

Unexcused absences, tardiness and early departures will result in disciplinary sanctions as described in the District's Code of Conduct. Consequences may include, but are not limited to, in-school suspension, loss of parking privileges, loss of senior privileges, detention and denial of participation in interscholastic and extracurricular activities.

Parents/persons in parental relation will be notified by designated District personnel at periodic intervals to discuss their child's absences, tardiness or early departures and the importance of class attendance and appropriate interventions. Individual buildings/grade levels will address procedures to implement the notification process to the parent/person in parental relation.

DEVELOPING INTERVENTION STRATEGIES

In addition to the communication of the responsibilities of the students, parents and school, the implementation of incentives and the enforcement of consequences, each building administration will meet on a yearly basis to evaluate the effectiveness of their intervention programs. New interventions will be discussed and implemented with approval from the principal. All strategies utilized by each school will be summarized and sent to the Director of Student Services who will maintain a current list of all strategies used throughout the district.

APPEAL PROCESS

A parent/person in parental relation may request a building level review of their child's attendance record. Students/parents must first appeal to the principal or his/her designee, in writing, if they feel their attendance record is not accurate. The appeal must be made within five (5) days of the disputed absence. At this review, the absences will be discussed. Further appeals may be made to the superintendent (or his/her designee).

COMMUNICATION OF ATTENDANCE POLICY

A summary of the Attendance Policy will be printed in each student handbook. Teachers will review the attendance policy at the start of each school year. Parents will be sent a copy of the Attendance Policy summary each year in the school calendar and in the parent guide. Back-to-school events and open houses will include an explanation of the policy, stressing the parent's crucial responsibility for ensuring children's attendance.

All staff will be provided with the Attendance Policy. They will be made aware of the procedures necessary for the accurate attendance recording for each class they teach. Teachers will review the policy with their students at the beginning of each school year.

BUILDING REVIEW OF ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The building principal will work in conjunction with the building attendance clerk and other designated staff in reviewing attendance records at the end of each term. This review is conducted to identify individual and group attendance patterns and to initiate appropriate action to address the problem of unexcused absences, tardiness and early departures.

ANNUAL REVIEW BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

The Board of Education shall annually review the building level student attendance records and if such records show a decline in student attendance, the Board shall make any revisions to the Policy and plan deemed necessary to improve student attendance.

COMMUNITY AWARENESS

The Board of Education shall promote necessary community awareness of the District's Comprehensive Student Attendance Policy by:

- A) Providing a plain language summary of the policy to parents or persons in parental relation to students at the beginning of each school year and promoting the understanding of such a policy to students and their parents/persons in parental relation;
- B) Providing each teacher, at the beginning of the school year or upon employment, with a copy of the policy; and
- C) Providing copies of the policy to any other member of the community upon request.
- D) The attendance codes for student absences are attached as a supplement to this policy.

Education Law Sections 3024, 3025, 3202, 3205, 3206, 3210, 3211, and 3213 8 New York Code of Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Sections 104.1, 109.2 and 175.6

Board Adopted 2007 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, February 7, 2023

POLICY 3200 STUDENT PUBLICATIONS

The Board of Education supports and encourages student publications because they offer an educational activity through which students gain experience in reporting, writing, editing, and understanding responsible journalism. All student publications will comply with the rules for responsible journalism. Libelous statements, unfounded charges and accusations, obscenity, false statements, materials advocating racial or religious prejudice, hatred, violence, the breaking of laws and school regulations or materials which otherwise disrupt the educational process will not be permitted.

Student publications which are paid for or otherwise sponsored by the district and/or produced under the direction of a teacher as part of the school curriculum are not considered a public forum. The Board reserves the right to edit or delete such material which is inconsistent with the district's educational mission. The faculty advisor will review all students' publications prior to distribution to verify that the District standards are met.

Students who edit, publish or distribute handwritten, printed, electronic or duplicated matter among students within the school must also comply with the applicable provision of this Policy and any associated Regulation.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, March 7, 2023

POLICY 3210 SCREENING OF NEW SCHOOL ENTRANTS

The Board of Education directs the Superintendent to establish regulations to screen every new entrant to school to determine which students may have disabilities, may be gifted, may qualify for academic intervention, or may be of limited English proficiency. The regulations are to be consistent with federal, state law and the Commissioner's regulations.

Board Approval 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, March 7, 2023

POLICY 3220 ACADEMIC INTERVENTION SERVICES

The Board directs the Superintendent to oversee the development, maintenance and evaluation of Academic Intervention Services. The program will specifically address the needs of students who must be provided with these services as a result of test scores on state-required tests (in compliance with the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education), as well as the needs of students who, by district measures, may be at risk of not meeting New York State Standards.

To determine student eligibility for such a program, the Superintendent or his/her designee is to design appropriate assessment procedures, with input from parents, regular classroom teachers, guidance and special education personnel.

Board Approval 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, March 7, 2023

POLICY 3230 INTERPRETERS FOR HEARING IMPAIRED PARENTS

The East Irondequoit Board of Education will provide interpreter services, provided sufficient notice is given, at no charge, to parents or persons in parental relation, who are hearing impaired for school meetings or activities related to their child's educational program. Notice of the need for an interpreter will be considered sufficient if a written request for the service has been submitted to the District's Title IX Compliance Officer and received no less than five (5) school days prior to the scheduled meeting or activity. If an interpreter is unavailable, the District will make other reasonable accommodations which are satisfactory to the parents (e.g., note taker, transcript, decoder, or telecommunication device for the deaf).

Board Approved June 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, March 21, 2023

POLICY 3240 CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND REPORTING

The Superintendent will develop, maintain and disseminate written regulations and procedures for mandated child abuse reporters. The District will have in place the services and procedures necessary to safeguard the life or health of the child. The Superintendent or his/her designee will be responsible for establishing and implementing a training program for all current and new school officials regarding these regulations and procedures for prevention of and responding to suspected child abuse and maltreatment.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, March 21, 2023

POLICY 3250 STUDENT DIRECTORY INFORMATION

The District will publish an annual public notice informing parents or eligible students (students age 18 or older) of their right to refuse the release of student "directory information" (defined below) and indicating a time period for their response. Following such public notice and a reasonable response period, the District may release such information to the public without individual consent. Such disclosures of directory information may include (but are not limited to) placing the information in school newsletters, school yearbooks, school-sponsored web sites, and school sports programs.

"Directory information" includes the student's: name, photographs, video images, address, telephone listing, date and place of birth, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height (if members of athletic teams), degrees and awards received, and the name of the educational agency or institution previously attended by the student.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, March 21, 2023

POLICY 3260 PUPIL RIGHTS

The Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment ("PPRA") is a federal statute which protects student privacy in connection with (i) student surveys, (ii) instructional materials, (iii) invasive physical examinations and (iv) the collection of personal information for marketing purposes. This policy, which has been developed in consultation with parents, is designed to afford the PPRA protections to the District's students.

1. STUDENT SURVEYS

Surveys are useful tools for determining student educational needs and appropriate services to meet those needs. Some surveys may ask questions regarding "protected information" under the PPRA. "Protected information" includes:

- 1. Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student's parent;
- 2. Mental or psychological problems of the student or the student's family;
- 3. Sex behavior or attitudes;
- 4. Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating or demeaning behavior;
- 5. Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom respondents have close family relationships;
- 6. Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, physicians and ministers;
- 7. Religious practices, affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student's parent; or
- 8. Income (other than that required by law to determine eligibility for participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such program).

Right to Consent: No minor student, without parental consent, may take part in a survey, analysis or evaluation funded in whole or in part by the U.S. Department of Education that reveals protected information ("USDOE Protected Information Survey").

Right to Opt Out: Parents have the right to opt their children out of any survey involving the collection and disclosure of any protected information for surveys not funded in whole or in part by the US Department of Education ("Third Party Protected Information Survey").

Right to Inspect: Parents have the right to inspect, upon request, any Third-Party Survey before the survey is administered or distributed by a school to students.

2. INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

Right to Inspect: Parents have the right to inspect, upon request, any instructional material used as part of the educational curriculum for students.

"Instructional material" includes: Instructional content that is provided to a student, regardless of format, including printed or representational materials, audio-visual materials, and materials in electronic or digital formats (such as materials accessible through the internet). Instructional material does not include tests or academic assessments.

3. INVASIVE PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS

"Invasive physical examinations" include any medical examination that involves the exposure of private body parts, or any act during such examination that includes incision, insertion, or injecting into the body, but does not include a hearing, vision or scoliosis screening.

Right to Opt Out: Parents have the right to opt their children out of the administration of any non-emergency, invasive physical examination or screening that is required as a condition of attendance, administered by the school or its agent, and not necessary to protect the immediate health and safety of a student ("protected invasive physical examination").

Exceptions: In addition to hearing, vision and scoliosis screening, the District may perform any physical exam screening permitted or required under State law (e.g., physical examinations upon entrance to school at grades 1, 3, 7 & 10, physical examinations for participation in athletics or to obtain work permits, examinations for suspected disabilities conducted in accordance with the IDEA or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973).

4. COLLECTION OF PERSONAL INFORMATION FOR MARKETING PURPOSES

Right to Opt Out: Parents have the right to opt their children out of activities involving collection, disclosure, or use of personal information obtained from students for marketing or to sell or otherwise distribute the information to others for marketing or sales purposes ("commercial purposes"). "Personal information" includes individually identifiable information including a student or parent's first and last name, home address, telephone number, or social security number.

Right to Inspect: Parents have the right to inspect any instrument used in the collection of personal information for commercial purposes before the instrument is administered or distributed to their children.

While it is the District's policy not to permit the collection, disclosure, or use of personal information for commercial purposes, the right to opt out and inspect under this section does not apply to the collection, disclosure, or use of personal information collected from students for the exclusive purpose of developing, evaluating, or providing educational products or services for, or to students or educational institutions, such as:

- a) College or post-secondary educational recruitment or military recruitment;
- b) Book clubs, magazines and programs providing access to low-cost literary products;
- c) Curriculum and instructional materials used in schools;
- d) Tests and assessments used to provide cognitive, evaluative, diagnostic, clinical, aptitude or achievement information for students or to generate other statistically useful data for the purpose of securing such tests and assessments, and the subsequent analysis and public release of the aggregate data from such tests and assessments;
- e) Student recognition programs;
- f) The sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related activities.

When personal information is collected, disclosed or used, student privacy shall be protected by the District pursuant to the requirements of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.

PROCEDURAL ISSUES:

1. Inspection of Surveys, Instructional Materials and Instruments to Collect Personal Information from Students for Commercial Purposes:

Any parent wishing to exercise his/her right to inspect materials under this policy should provide a written request to his/her child's building principal. Upon receipt of the request, arrangements shall be made to provide access to the material within 30 calendar days.

Parents will be notified annually, at the beginning of the school year, and when enrolling students for the first time in district schools, of this policy. Parents will also be notified within a reasonable period of time after any substantive change to this policy.

2. Annual Notification of Policy:

Parents will be notified annually, at the beginning of the school year, and when enrolling students for the first time in district schools, of this policy. Parents will also be notified within a reasonable period of time after any substantive change to this policy.

3. Annual Notification of Anticipated Surveys, Invasive Physical Exams & Collection of Personal Information:

Parents will be notified at the beginning of the school year of the anticipated dates when the District will administer any protected information survey, perform any protected invasive physical examination, or collect, disclose or use personal information for commercial purposes. Parents will be provided with subsequent prior written notice of such activities that arise during the course of the school year.

With each notice, parents will be advised of their right to consent or opt their child out, as the case may be, as to each activity listed

4. Transfer of Parental Rights:

The rights provided to parents under PPRA transfer to the student when he/she turns 18 years old or is an emancipated minor under New York State law.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, April 11, 2023

POLICY 3270 NOTIFICATION OF RELEASE OF SEX OFFENDERS

When the Superintendent of Schools receives information from local police authorities concerning the release of sex offenders within the District, the Superintendent will communicate appropriate information to District staff and the community.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, April 11, 2023

POLICY 3280 WELLNESS POLICY

The East Irondequoit Central School District is committed to providing a school environment that enhances learning and development of lifelong wellness practices.

To accomplish these goals, the East Irondequoit Central School District will provide for the following:

- Child Nutrition Programs comply with federal, state and local requirements.
- Child Nutrition Programs are accessible to all children.
- Sequential and interdisciplinary nutrition education is provided and promoted.
- Patterns of meaningful physical activity connect to students' lives outside of physical education.
- All school-based activities are consistent with local wellness policy goals.
- All food and beverages made available on campus (including vending, concessions, a la carte, student stores, parties, and fundraising) during the school day are consistent with the current Dietary Guidelines for Americans.
- All foods made available on campus adhere to food safety and security guidelines.
- The school environment is safe, comfortable, pleasing, and allows ample time and space for eating meals. Food and/or physical activity is not used as a reward or punishment.
- The District Wellness Committee periodically reviews the Wellness Policy.

Regulations shall be developed by the administration to implement this Policy.

Board Approved 2003 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020 Board Revised April 25, 2023

<u>IDENTIFICATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING</u>

Under the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 (ESSA) and Education Law Section §3209, as amended in 2017, all districts are obligated to affirmatively identify all students in temporary housing. Therefore, it is the policy of this local educational agency ("LEA"), the East Irondequoit CSD, to determine whether there are students in temporary housing within the LEA by using a housing questionnaire to determine the nighttime residence of all newly enrolled students and all students whose address changes during the school year. Not all students in temporary housing can be identified through social service agencies or shelters, as children may be sharing the housing of other persons, such as family or friends, due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or other similar reason. For this reason, the East Irondequoit CSD uses a housing questionnaire that asks for a description of the current living arrangements of the child or youth in order to determine whether the child or youth meets the definition of a homeless child under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. § 11434A(2)) ("McKinney-Vento") and Education Law § 3209(1)(a).

In addition to using the housing questionnaire, the East Irondequoit CSD will also maintain our existing relationship with our local department of social services to identify students in temporary housing, as well as the local runaway and homeless youth shelter, and any other shelters located within the district boundaries to ensure all students in temporary housing are properly identified and served.

DEFINITION OF HOMELESS CHILD AND UNACCOMPANIED YOUTH

Pursuant to McKinney-Vento 42 USC § 11434A(2), Education Law § 3209(1)(a), and 8 NYCRR § 100.2(x)(1)(iii) a homeless child is defined as:

- (1) a child or youth who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, including a child or youth who is:
 - (i) sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship or similar reason (sometimes referred to as "doubled-up");
 - (ii) living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations;
 - (iii) abandoned in hospitals;

or

- (iv) a migratory child as defined in subsection two of section thirteen hundred nine of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015, who qualifies as homeless under any of the provisions of clauses (i) through (iii) of this subparagraph or subparagraph two of this paragraph;
- (v) an unaccompanied youth, as defined in section seven hundred twenty-five of subtitle B of title VII of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; or
- (2) a child or youth who has a primary nighttime location that is:
 - (i) a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary living accommodations including, but not limited to, shelters operated or approved by the state or local department of social services, and residential programs for runaway and homeless youth established pursuant to article nineteen-H of the executive law; or
 - (ii) a public or private place not designed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a child or youth who is living in a car, park, public space, abandoned building, substandard housing, bus or train stations or similar setting.

An unaccompanied youth is defined as a homeless youth who is not in the physical custody of a parent or guardian. 42 USC § 11434A(6); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(1)(iii)(6)

DUTIES OF THE MANDATED MCKINNEY-VENTO LIAISON

Every LEA, regardless of whether it receives a McKinney-Vento subgrant, is required to designate a local liaison for homeless children and youth (known as the "McKinney-Vento liaison"). The McKinney-Vento liaison for the East Irondequoit CSD serves as one of the primary contacts between families experiencing homelessness and school staff, district personnel, shelter workers, and other service providers. The McKinney-Vento liaison coordinates services to ensure that homeless children and youth enroll in school and have the opportunity to succeed.

The East Irondequoit CSD's McKinney-Vento liaison must ensure that:

- 1. Students in temporary housing are identified by school personnel and through coordination activities with other entities and agencies;
- 2. Students in temporary housing enroll in, and have full and equal opportunity to succeed in, the schools of the East Irondequoit CSD;
- 3. Students in temporary housing and their families receive educational services for which they are eligible, including early intervention services under part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1431 et seq), and other preschool programs administered by the LEA.

- 4. Students and parents in temporary housing receive referrals to health care services, dental services, mental health and substance abuse services, housing services and other appropriate services;
- 5. Parents or guardians of students in temporary housing are informed of the educational and related opportunities available to their children and are provided with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children;
- 6. Parents and guardians of students in temporary housing, and unaccompanied youth, are fully informed of all transportation services, including transportation to and from the school district of origin and are assisted in accessing transportation services;
- 7. Disputes regarding eligibility, school selection, enrollment and/or transportation are mediated in accordance with the requirements of McKinney-Vento, Section 3209 of the Education Law, and Section 100.2(x)(7)(ii) of the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education;
- 8. Assistance in commencing an appeal pursuant to Education Law §310 of a final determination regarding eligibility, enrollment, school selection and/or transportation is provided to the students in temporary housing's parent or guardian or the unaccompanied youth in accordance with the provisions of 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(7)(iii)(c);
- 9. Public notice of the educational rights of students in temporary housing is posted in locations where such students receive services, such as schools, shelters, public libraries, and soup kitchens, in a manner and form understandable to the parents and guardians of students in temporary housing, and unaccompanied youth; A record is maintained of all appeals of enrollment, school selection and transportation; and
- 10. School personnel providing services to students in temporary housing receive professional development and other support; and
- 11. Unaccompanied youths
 - a) are enrolled in school;
 - b) have opportunities to meet the same challenging State academic standards as the State establishes for other children and youth, including receiving credit for full or partial coursework earned in a prior school pursuant to Commissioner's regulations, and
 - c) are informed of their status as independent students under section 480 of the Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1087vv) and that the youths may obtain assistance from the local educational agency liaison to receive verification of such status for purposes of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid described in section 483 of such Act (20 U.S.C. 1090).
- 12. School personnel, service providers, advocates working with students in temporary housing, parents and guardians of students in temporary housing, and students in temporary housing are informed of the duties of the McKinney-Vento liaison.

42 USC §11432(g)(6)(A)-(B); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(7)(iii)(a)

SCHOOL OF ORIGIN

School of origin is:

- The public school that the child or youth attended when permanently housed or the school in which the child or youth was last enrolled, including a preschool or a charter school;
- The designated receiving school at the next grade level for all feeder schools for a student in temporary housing who completes the final grade level served by the school of origin; and
- The public school or preschool in which such child would have been entitled or eligible to attend based on such child's last residence before the circumstances arose which caused such child to become homeless if the child becomes homeless after such child is eligible to apply, register, or enroll in the public preschool or kindergarten or if the child is living with a school-age sibling who attends school in the school district of origin.

42 USC §11432(g)(3)(G); NY Education Law §3209(1)(i)

Feeder school means:

- a preschool whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary school or group of elementary schools upon completion of that preschool; or
- a school whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary, middle, intermediate, or high school or group of specified elementary, middle, intermediate, or high schools upon completion of the terminal grade of such school; or
- a school that sends its students to a receiving school in a neighboring school district.

NY Education Law §3209(1)(f)

Receiving school means:

- a school that enrolls students from a specified or group of preschools, elementary schools, middle schools, intermediate schools, or high schools; or
- a school that enrolls students from a feeder school in a neighboring local educational agency.

NY Education Law §3209(1)(h)

Preschool means a publicly funded prekindergarten program administered by the East Irondequoit CSD and/or services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act administered by the East Irondequoit CSD

NY Education Law §3209(1)(g)

SCHOOL AND SCHOOL DISTRICT DESIGNATIONS

The East Irondequoit CSD understands that the "designator" makes an initial decision about which school and school district a student in temporary housing will attend. A designator is:

- the parent or person in parental relation (guardian) to a student in temporary housing; or
- the student in temporary housing, together with the McKinney-Vento liaison, in the case of an unaccompanied youth; or
- the director of a residential program for runaway and homeless youth, in consultation with the student in temporary housing, where such student is living in such program.

See, NY Education Law §3209(1)(b); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(1)(i)

The East Irondequoit CSD will ask the designator to designate one of the following as the school district of attendance:

- **School district of current location** the public school district within the State of New York in which the hotel, motel, shelter or other temporary housing arrangement of a student in temporary housing or the residential program for runaway and homeless youth is located, which is different than the school district of origin.
- School district of origin the public school district within the State of New York in which the student in temporary housing was attending a public school on a tuition-free basis or was entitled to attend when circumstances arose that caused such child to become homeless which is different from the school district of current location. The school district of origin also includes the school district in the state of New York in which the child was residing when circumstances arose which caused such child to become homeless if such child was eligible to apply, register, or enroll in public preschool or kindergarten at the time such child became homeless, or the homeless child has a sibling who attends a school in the school district in which the child was residing when circumstances arose which caused such child to become homeless.
- School district participating in a regional placement plan a regional placement plan is a
 comprehensive regional approach to the provision of educational placements for homeless
 children, which must be approved by the Commissioner of Education.

The East Irondequoit CSD will also ask the designator to designate one of the following as the school where a student in temporary housing seeks to attend:

• the school of origin; or

• any school that permanently housed children and youth who live in the attendance area in which the child or youth is actually living are eligible to attend, including a preschool.

Please note: Students can maintain enrollment in the school of origin for the duration of homelessness and through the end of the school year in which the student becomes permanently housed. The student may be able to remain in the school of origin for one additional year, if the year constitutes the student's terminal year in such school building.

42 USC §11432(g)(3)(A); NY Education Law §§3209(1)-(2); 8 NYCRR §§100.2 (x)(1)-(2)

DESIGNATION/STAC 202 FORM

The East Irondequoit CSD will identify all students in temporary housing, and a designation form will be completed by the designator for all such students and any other student who claims homelessness. Designations must be made on the STAC 202 form provided by the Commissioner. A copy of the form is available at: http://www.nysteachs.org/media/INF_SED_STAC202_Form.pdf.

- The appropriate designator must complete the designation form. The East Irondequoit CSD makes designation forms available to a student in temporary housing who seeks admission to school or to the parent or person in parental relation who seeks to enroll such child in school.
- Where a parent or person in parental relation or a child who is neither placed in a temporary housing facility by the local department of social services nor housed in a residential program for runaway homeless youth, designates the East Irondequoit CSD as the school district of current location, the East Irondequoit CSD will forward to the State Education Department a completed designation form and a statement of the basis for its determination that the child is a homeless child entitled to attend the schools of the district.

NY Education Law §3209(2)(e); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(3)

<u>UPON RECEIPT OF THE DESIGNATION/STAC 202 FORM: IMMEDIATE ENROLLMENT AND BEST INTEREST DETERMINATIONS</u>

Upon identification of a child who is in temporary housing and/or receipt of a completed designation form, the East Irondequoit CSD will:

immediately review the designation form to assure that it has been completed and admit
the student in temporary housing even if the child or youth is unable to produce records
normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, medical records,
immunization records, proof of residency or other documentation and even if the child or
youth has missed application deadlines;

- determine whether the designation made by the designator is consistent with the best interests of the student in temporary housing. In making best interests decisions the East Irondequoit CSD will:
 - presume that keeping the child in the school of origin is in the child's best interest, except when doing so is contrary to the wishes of the parent or guardian (or youth in the case of an unaccompanied youth); and
 - consider student-centered factors such as the effect of mobility on student achievement, education, health, and safety of the child, giving priority to the wishes of the child's parent or guardian (or the youth, if a homeless unaccompanied youth). If the East Irondequoit CSD determines that it is in the best interest of the student in temporary housing to attend a school other than the school of origin or the designated school, the East Irondequoit CSD shall provide the parent or guardian (or youth, if an unaccompanied youth) with a written explanation of its determination, including information about the right to appeal. (See Dispute Resolution Process).

42 USC §11432(g)(3)(B); NY Education Law §3209(2)(f)(3); 8 NYCRR § 100.2(x)(7)(ii).

- provide the child with access to all of the East Irondequoit CSD's programs, activities and services to the same extent as they are provided to resident students;
- immediately contact the school district where the child's records are located in order to obtain a copy of such records and coordinate the transmittal of records for students with disabilities pursuant to section 200.4(e)(8)(iii) of the Commissioner's regulations;
- immediately refer the parent or guardian of the student in temporary housing to the school nurse who must assist in obtaining necessary immunizations or immunization or medical records if the child or youth needs to obtain immunizations or immunization or medical records;
- forward the STAC 202 form to the Commissioner and the school district of origin, where applicable. In all cases, the East Irondequoit CSD will give a copy of the completed STAC 202 to the designator and keep a copy of the STAC 202 form for the LEA's records.

42 USC §§11432(g)(3)(C)&(g)(4); NY Education Law §3209(2); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(4)

UPON RECEIPT OF A REQUEST FOR RECORDS

Within five days of receipt of a request for school records from a new school, the East Irondequoit CSD will forward, in a manner consistent with state and federal law, a complete copy of the student in temporary housing's records, including, but not limited to, proof of age, academic records, evaluations, immunization records, and guardianship papers, if applicable. NY Education Law $\S3209(2)(g)$; 8 NYCRR $\S100.2(x)(5)$

TUITION REIMBURSEMENT [ONLY APPLICABLE TO SCHOOL DISTRICTS, NOT CHARTER SCHOOLS OR BOCES]

The East Irondequoit CSD is eligible to request reimbursement from the State Education Department for the direct costs of educational services to students in temporary housing that are not otherwise reimbursed under special federal programs, when:

- the district is either the school district of current location or a school district participating in a regional placement plan,
- the district is designated as the school district of attendance, and
- the school district of origin for the student in temporary housing is within New York State.

All claims for reimbursement will be made on the STAC 202 form prescribed by the Commissioner of the State Education Department.

NY Education Law §3209(3)(a)

In addition, the East Irondequoit CSD is eligible for reimbursement for the direct costs of educational services, including transportation costs for students who continue enrollment in the East Irondequoit CSD schools after finding permanent housing midyear in a different school district within New York State. In such cases, the East Irondequoit CSD will directly bill the new district where the student permanently resides for all direct costs of educational services, including transportation, that are not otherwise reimbursed under special federal programs.

NY Education Law §3209(4)(i); NYS Field Memo, September 26, 2013 (available at: http://nysteachs.org/media/STACGuidance_Final_9-26-13.pdf)

TRANSPORTATION RESPONSIBILITIES

• A social services district is responsible for providing transportation to students in temporary housing, including preschool students and students with disabilities who are eligible for benefits under Social Services Law §350-j and placed in temporary housing arrangements outside their designated districts. Where the social services district requests that the East Irondequoit CSD provide or arrange for transportation for a student in temporary housing in the circumstances above, the East Irondequoit CSD shall provide or arrange for the transportation and directly bill the social services district so that the district will be fully and promptly reimbursed for the cost of the transportation. NY Education Law §3209(4)(a)

- If the East Irondequoit CSD is the designated school district of attendance, the East Irondequoit CSD shall provide for the transportation of each student in temporary housing who is living in a residential program for runaway and homeless youth, including if such temporary housing is located outside the school district. The costs for transportation for each student in temporary housing who lives in a residential program for runaway youth and homeless youth located outside of the designated school district will be reimbursed by the State Education Department, to the extent funds are provided for such purpose, with the submission of a Runaway and Homeless Youth Act Transportation Program Form. Where the East Irondequoit CSD provides transportation for a student living in an Runaway and Homeless Youth ("RHY") facility, the district will promptly request reimbursement using the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act Transportation Form, which is available from the Homeless Education Program Office (518-473-0295) and online at www.nysteachs.org. NY Education Law §3209(4)(b)
- The East Irondequoit CSD will transport any student in temporary housing to their school of origin, including preschools and charter schools, where it is the designated district of attendance and the student in temporary housing is not entitled to receive transportation from the Department of Social Services. NY Education Law §3209(4)(c); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(6)(iv)
- When the East Irondequoit CSD is designated as the school district of current location for a student in temporary housing and the student does not attend the school of origin, the East Irondequoit CSD will provide transportation on the same basis as it is provided to resident students, unless the local transportation policy represents a barrier to the student's attendance in school. NY Education Law §§3209(4)(d) & (6)(b); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(6)(iii)
- If the student in temporary housing designates the East Irondequoit CSD as the school district of attendance, transportation will not exceed 50 miles each way, unless the Commissioner of the State Education Department determines that it is in the best interest of the child. NY Education Law §3209(4)(c); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(6)(ii)
- Where the East Irondequoit CSD is designated as the school district of attendance and it has recommended the student in temporary housing attend a summer educational program, such district of attendance will provide transportation services to students in temporary housing for summer educational programs if the lack of transportation poses a barrier to the student's participation in the program. NY Education Law §3209(4)(e); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(6)(v)
- Where the East Irondequoit CSD is designated as the school district of attendance, it will provide transportation services to students in temporary housing for extracurricular or academic activities when:
 - The student participates in or would like to participate in an extracurricular or academic activity, including an after-school activity, at the school; and
 - The student meets the eligibility criteria for the activity; and
 - The lack of transportation poses a barrier to the student's participation in the activity. NY Education Law §3209(4)(f); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(6)(vi)

Where the East Irondequoit CSD is designated as the school district of attendance, it will provide transportation as described above for the duration of homelessness, unless the social services district is responsible for providing transportation. After the student becomes permanently housed, the East Irondequoit CSD will provide transportation to the school of origin until the end of the school year and for one additional year if that year constitutes the child's terminal year in the school building. NY Education Law §3209(4)(i); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(6)(iv)

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS

The East Irondequoit CSD has established the following procedures for the prompt resolution of disputes regarding school selection or enrollment of a homeless child or youth:

- the East Irondequoit CSD will provide a written explanation, including a statement regarding the right to appeal, to the parent or guardian of a student in temporary housing, or to an unaccompanied youth if the East Irondequoit CSD determines that the East Irondequoit CSD is not required to either enroll and/or transport such child or youth to the school of origin or a school requested by the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth, or if there is a disagreement about a child's or youth's status as a homeless child or unaccompanied youth. The written explanation will be in a manner and form understandable to such parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth and will include a statement regarding the McKinney-Vento liaison's availability to help the parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth with any appeal and the contact information for the liaison.
- the East Irondequoit CSD will immediately enroll the student in the school in which enrollment is sought by the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth, provide transportation to the school, and will delay for 30 days the implementation of a final determination to decline to either enroll in and/or transport the student in temporary housing to the school of origin or a school requested by the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth.
- If the parent or guardian of a student in temporary housing or unaccompanied youth commences an appeal to the Commissioner within 30 days of such final determination, the student will be permitted to continue to attend the school he or she is enrolled in at the time of the appeal and/or receive transportation to that school pending the resolution of all available appeals.

42 USC §§11432(g)(3)(B) & (E); NY Education Law §3209(5); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(7)(ii)

MCKINNEY-VENTO LIAISON'S DISPUTE RESOLUTION RESPONSIBILITIES

The East Irondequoit CSD's McKinney-Vento liaison must assist the student in temporary housing's parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth in bringing an appeal to the Commissioner under Education Law §310 of a final school district decision regarding enrollment, school selection and/or transportation. In the event of a dispute regarding eligibility, enrollment, school selection, and/or transportation, the East Irondequoit CSD's McKinney-Vento liaison will:

- provide the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth with a copy of the form petition, which is available at: http://www.counsel.nysed.gov/appeals/homelessForms;
- assist the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth in completing the form petition;
- arrange for the copying of the form petition and supporting documents for the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth, without cost to the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth;
- accept service of the form petition and supporting papers on behalf of any school district
 employee or officer named as a party or the school district if it is named as a party or arrange
 for service by mail by mailing the form petition and supporting documents to any school
 district employee or officer named as a party and, if the school district is named as a party, to
 a person in the office of the superintendent who has been designated by the board of
 education to accept service on behalf of the school district;
- provide the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth with a signed and dated
 acknowledgment verifying that the McKinney-Vento liaison has received the form petition
 and supporting documents and will either accept service of these documents on behalf of the
 school district employee or officer or school district or effect service by mail by mailing the
 form petition and supporting documents to any school district employee or officer named as
 a party and, if the school district is named as a party, to a person in the office of the
 superintendent who has been designated by the board of education to accept service on
 behalf of the school district;
- transmit on behalf of the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth, within five days after the service of, the form petition or any pleading or paper to the Office of Counsel, New York State Education Department, State Education Building, Albany, New York 12234;
- provide the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth with a signed and dated acknowledgement verifying that the McKinney-Vento liaison has received the form petition and supporting documents and will transmit these documents on behalf of the parent, guardian or unaccompanied youth to the Office of Counsel, New York State Education Department, State Education Building, Albany, New York 12234;
- accept service of any subsequent pleadings or papers, including any correspondence related to the appeal, if the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth so elects. The liaison must also make such correspondence available to the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth; and

 maintain a record of all appeals of enrollment, school selection, and transportation determinations.

42 USC §11432(g)(3)(E)(iii); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(7)(iii)(c)

COORDINATION

- The East Irondequoit CSD will coordinate the provision of services described above with local social services agencies, housing providers and other agencies or programs providing services to students in temporary housing and their families, including services and programs funded under the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act.
- The East Irondequoit CSD will coordinate with other school districts on inter-district issues, such as transportation or transfer of school records.
- The East Irondequoit CSD will coordinate implementation of the above provision of services with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) for students with disabilities.

42 USC §11432(g)(5); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(7)(iv)

COORDINATION WITH TITLE I

The East Irondequoit CSD acknowledges that students in temporary housing are eligible for services under Title I, Part A, whether or not they live in a Title I school attendance area or meet the academic requirements required of other children. the East Irondequoit CSD will ensure that:

- Title I, Part A funds are set aside as are necessary to provide students in temporary housing, who may have unique needs that differ from their permanently housed peers, with educationally related support services;
- Its local plan includes a description of how the plan is coordinated with McKinney-Vento;
- Its local plan describes the services provided to students in temporary housing;
- Its local plan describes the efforts it made to identify students in temporary housing, including unaccompanied youth, if the East Irondequoit CSD reports that there are no students in temporary housing enrolled in the LEA. Such efforts will include contacting the local department of social services or Office of Children and Family Services (OCFS) to verify that there are no students in temporary housing in the LEA; and

• Its housing questionnaire asks about the living arrangements of the child or unaccompanied youth, including asking if he or she is living in a shelter; with relatives or others due to loss of housing or economic hardship; in an abandoned apartment/building; in a motel/hotel, camping ground, car, train/bus station or other similar situation due to the lack of alternative, adequate housing. Documentation of the LEA's efforts to identify students in temporary housing will be maintained on file and a copy of the housing questionnaire that asks the above questions will also be kept on file.

20 USC §§6312(b)(6) & 6313(c)(3)

REPORTING

The East Irondequoit CSD will collect and transmit to the Commissioner, at such time and in such manner as the Commissioner may require, reports containing such information as the Commissioner determines is necessary, including the numbers of homeless students, their grade, and their nighttime residence.

NY Education Law §3209(6)(c); 8 NYCRR §100.2(x)(7)(v)

ACCESS TO FREE MEALS (ONLY FOR LEAS PARTICIPATING IN THE FEDERAL FREE/REDUCED MEAL PROGRAM)

The East Irondequoit CSD will provide free meals to all children identified as homeless. They do not have to complete a free or reduced-price meal application. When the McKinney-Vento liaison or a shelter director provides a child's name to the East Irondequoit CSD's school food service office, free school meals will commence immediately.

42 USC §§1758(b)(5) &(b)(12)(A)

REMOVAL OF BARRIERS

The East Irondequoit CSD will review and revise local policies that may act as barriers to the identification of students in temporary housing and their enrollment and retention in school, including barriers to enrollment and retention due to outstanding fees or fines, or absences.

42 USC §§11432(g)(1)(I)&(g)(7)(A); NY Education Law §3209(6)(b)

COMPARABLE SERVICES

The East Irondequoit CSD will provide services to students in temporary housing comparable to those offered to other students in the district, including transportation services; educational services for which the child or youth meets the relevant eligibility criteria, such as services provided under Title I or similar State or local programs; educational programs for students with disabilities; educational programs for English learners; programs in career and technical education; programs for gifted and talented students; and school nutrition programs.

42 USC §11432(g)(4); NY Education Law §3209(9)

PRIVACY OF STUDENT INFORMATION

Information about a student in temporary housing's living situation shall be treated as a student education record and shall not be deemed to be directory information under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). A parent/guardian or homeless unaccompanied youth may consent to the release of a student's address information in the same way they would for other student education records under FERPA.

Questions about this policy or the protections available to students in temporary housing can be directed to the McKinney-Vento Liaison: Mr. Jim Vallone jim_vallone@eastiron.monroe.edu. Questions can also be directed to NYS-TEACHS at (800) 388-2014 or the State Education Department at (518) 473-0295.

Board Approved 2005

Board Reviewed 2003, 2011, 2014, 2017, April 25, 2023 Board Revised 2020, March 23, 2021

POLICY 3300 ATHLETIC/EXTRACURRICULAR ELIGIBILITY

The Board of Education's goal is to encourage its student body to become involved in the numerous opportunities that are available throughout their middle and high school year, and to represent the school community in a positive manner. The Board of Education recognizes that participation in athletics/extracurricular activities is a privilege. Student participation is dependent on his/her commitment and performance related to the academic program and demonstration of positive behaviors in school and in the community.

The Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee will also be responsible for establishing the administrative practices, plans and procedures.

Board Approved 2003, May 9, 2023 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, April 25, 2023

POLICY 3310 ADMISSION OF EXCHANGE STUDENTS

The Board of Education recognizes the cultural enrichment achieved by welcoming Foreign Exchange Students into the high school program. The Board, therefore, encourages Eastridge High School participation in the Foreign Exchange Student Program.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Foreign students participating in a Board of Education approved Student Exchange Program may attend District schools pending a successful review of the request by administration. The administration is authorized to file with the U. S. Immigration and Naturalization Service the forms necessary for such students to obtain a student visa. The District will neither sponsor nor accept for admission students whose permanent residence is outside of the United States who are not participating in a recognized foreign student exchange program.

Foreign exchange students will be allowed to attend school and will be provided bus transportation to and from school free of charge in accordance with district policy.

GUIDELINES GOVERNING ACCEPTANCE OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE STUDENTS

- a) The students must have demonstrated in their home school a level of scholastic achievement to indicate the possibility of success in Eastridge High School.
- b) Students who have earned the equivalent of a high school diploma in their native land will not be accepted in this program.
- c) Proficiency in the English language is required.
- d) The student's records and credentials must be available to school officials by June 15 for admission the following September.
- e) All international student applications will be reviewed by the international student advisor, appropriate counselor, and the building principal. After the review, a recommendation for the approval or rejection of the application will be submitted to the Superintendent.
- f) The District reserves the right to deny admission to any student not meeting all the requirements set forth in this policy.

GUIDELINES GOVERNING FOREIGN EXCHANGE STUDENTS

a) The student must enroll for a full course of study.

- b) The student will conform to established standards of acceptable behavior and will conform to the rules and regulations of Eastridge High School.
- c) The student will be granted a certificate upon completion of an approved course of study.

GUIDELINES GOVERNING THE TERMINATION OF PROGRESS

- a) Failure of two or more courses of study;
- b) Failure to conform to established rules and regulations;
- c) Failure to conform to the regulations established by Student Exchange Program;
- d) Excessive absences

Board Approved 2003, 2007 Board Reviewed 2011, 2014, 2017, 2020, April 25, 2023

POLICY 3320 USE OF VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO RECORDING DEVICES IN CLASSROOMS

The video or audio recording of classroom instruction by visitors or students is prohibited without the prior permission of the classroom teacher and building principal.

Board Approved 2011 Board Reviewed 2014, 2017, 2020, May 9, 2023

POLICY 3330 DISSECTION OF ANIMALS

Any student expressing a moral or religious objection to the performance or witnessing of the dissection of an animal, either wholly or in part, shall be provided the opportunity to undertake and complete an alternative project that shall be approved by such student's teacher; provided, however, that such objection is substantiated in writing by the student's parent or legal guardian. Students who perform alternative projects who do not perform or witness the dissection of animals shall not be penalized.

The Superintendent of Schools or designee shall provide reasonable notice to all students enrolled in a course that includes the dissection of an animal and students' parents or legal guardians about their rights under this policy. Such notice shall be made available upon request at the school and distributed to parents and students enrolled in a course that includes dissection at least once at the beginning of the school year.

Board Approved 2011 Board Reviewed 2014, 2017, 2020, May 9, 2023

POLICY 3340 THERAPEUTIC CRISIS INTERVENTION

The Cornell Method of Therapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI) is the East Irondequoit Central School's approved program for training staff in crisis prevention and intervention. The major focus of this program is to provide staff with attitudes, skill and knowledge, which will help the individuals with whom they work to maintain the greatest degree of self-control and independence possible. The emphasis is on a positive and proactive as opposed to reactive approach to behavior management. Included within the TCI curriculum are sections on the special needs of emotionally disabled persons, techniques for preventing crisis with emphasis on team oriented approaches, and verbal and non-verbal calming techniques.

It is East Irondequoit Central School's intent to minimize the use of physical interventions and to emphasize sound behavior management programming based upon individual needs and integrated within a program of active treatment. However, despite the emphasis on crisis prevention and proactive behavior intervention, it is sometimes necessary to respond to behavior crisis by physically intervening. In order to provide optimal protection for those involved in such events, it is the policy of East Irondequoit Central School that only approved TCI personal (physical) interventions be employed by staff and that the use of such interventions be thoroughly documented.

NOTE: Refer also to Regulation 3242—Corporal Punishment Complaints

Board Approved 2018 Board Revied May 9, 2023

POLICY 3350 THERAPY DOGS IN SCHOOL

The East Irondequoit Central School District support the use of Therapy Dogs in schools. Therapy Dogs have been used successfully in schools for a variety of purposes, including helping calm students with behavioral issues, being a "reading buddy" to help improve literacy, and providing emotional comfort after traumatic events.

A "Therapy Dog" is a dog that has been individually trained, evaluated and registered or certified to work with its Handler to provide animal assisted activities, animal assisted therapy and animal assisted interactions for District students and/or staff.

The use of a Therapy Dog requires that permission be obtained from the Building Principal and the Superintendent of Schools before the dog is brought to the school or classrooms. It is the Building Principal's responsibility to confirm that there is an appropriate educational purpose for the Therapy Dog.

The Superintendent of Schools will establish regulations for the use of Therapy Dogs in school. The Regulations shall include minimum standards for Therapy Dogs and procedures regarding the use of Therapy Dogs in East Irondequoit Schools.

Board Approved 2019 Board Reviewed May 23, 2023

POLICY 3360 VOTER REGISTRATION FOR STUDENTS

To promote student voter registration, the Board of Education directs the High School Principal to identify programs and opportunities for all students who are at least 16 years old (but will not be 18 years old by the next election) pre-register to vote. Completion and submission of voter registration or pre-registration forms shall not be a course requirement or graded assignment for students.

Opportunities to pre-register to vote may include; offering registration materials through homeroom, or classes, or working in conjunction with the Monroe County Board of Elections and/or organizations such as the League of Women Voters.

Board Approved 2019 Board Reviewed May 23, 2023

POLICY 3370 DATA SECURITY AND PRIVACY POLICY

In accordance with New York State Education Law § 2-d, the District hereby implements the requirements of Commissioner's regulations (8 NYCRR part 121) and aligns its data security and privacy protocols with the National Institute for Standards and Technology Framework for Improving Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity Version 1.1 (NIST Cybersecurity Framework or "NIST CSF").

In this regard, every use and disclosure of personally identifiable information (PII) by the District will benefit students and the District (for example, improving academic achievement, empowering parents and students with information, and/or advancing efficient and effective school operations). PII will not be included in public reports or other documents.

The District also complies with the provisions of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA). Consistent with FERPA's requirements, unless otherwise permitted by law or regulation, the District will not release PII contained in student education records unless it has received a written consent (signed and dated) from a parent or eligible student. For more details, see policy 2030 and any applicable administrative regulations.

In addition to the requirements of FERPA, the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) provides additional privacy protections for students who are receiving special education and related services. For example, pursuant to these rules, the District will inform parents of children with disabilities when information is no longer needed and, except for certain permanent record information, that such information will be destroyed at the request of the parents. The District will comply with all such privacy provisions to protect the confidentiality of PII at collection, storage, disclosure, and destruction stages as set forth in federal regulations 34 CFR 300.610 through 300.627.

The Superintendent or his/her designee will establish and communicate procedures for parents, eligible students, and employees to file complaints about breaches or unauthorized releases of student, teacher or principal data (as set forth in 8 NYCRR 121.4). The Superintendent is also authorized to promulgate any and all other regulations necessary and proper to implement this policy.

References:

Education Law § 2-d

8 NYCRR Part 121

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 USC § 1232(g)), 34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 99

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 USC § 1400 et seq., 34 CFR 300.610-300.627

Board Approved 2020 Board Reviewd May 23, 2023

4000 Series: Noninstructional Business Operations

POLICY 4010 FISCAL PRACTICES

The annual school budget will be developed and administered in a fiscally sound manner. The basic goals of this policy include:

- Ongoing expenses and recurring revenues should be matched. One-time revenues should only be used to pay one-time expenses.
- To maintain the District's creditworthiness and protect it from unforeseen financial events and cyclical economic changes, the Board of Education supports maintaining a healthy balance in reserve funds and fund balance.
- Reserve funds should be used to pay recurring expenses only if the amount of money on
 deposit in the reserve fund is clearly sufficient to support these expenses for a number of
 years and when it can reasonably be anticipated that funds in the reserve can be
 replenished before they are exhausted.
- Should it be necessary to expend reserve funds or fund balance in a manner not consistent with this policy, the Assistant Superintendent for Business Administration will develop a reasonable plan to limit the District's future reliance on these funds.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2020, September 12, 2023

POLICY 4020 TRANSFER OF DISTRICT FUNDS

The transfer of funds between and within functional unit appropriations of the General Fund is commonly required during the school year. The Superintendent of Schools, in accordance with the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education, is authorized to make such budget transfers. The Superintendent will report any transfers to the Board of Education as a part of the monthly Budget Status Report.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2020, September 12, 2023

POLICY 4030 ACCEPTING GIFTS

The Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee is authorized on behalf of the District to accept gifts and/or donations valued at less than an amount set by the Board of Education annually at the reorganization meeting. Any gifts or donations which exceed this value must be approved by the Board of Education before they can be accepted.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2020, September 12, 2023

POLICY 4040 SALE AND DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

School District equipment or supplies that are obsolete, unusable, out of date or otherwise not needed by the District will be declared surplus by the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee and disposed of in a manner that is calculated to obtain the most benefit for the District. The District will maintain a listing of items declared as surplus for sale or for disposal. In selling or otherwise disposing of surplus personal property, the Superintendent will seek to achieve the prudent and economical use of public moneys in the best interests of taxpayers, and to guard against favoritism, improvidence, extravagance, fraud or corruption. The method of disposal that is chosen shall be consistent with the provisions of this policy.

The Superintendent shall provide such administrative regulations as are necessary to define and implement this policy.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2015, 2018, 2020, October 3, 2023 Board Revised 2016

POLICY 4050 DISTRICT INVESTMENTS

The Treasurer, under the direction of the Assistant Superintendent for Business Administration, is hereby authorized and directed to invest District funds that exceed those necessary to meet the District's current expenses in accordance with state and federal law. The Asst. Superintendent for Business Administration is responsible for the oversight and administration of the District's investments and must establish written procedures for the operation of the investment program consistent with law and this Policy. These written procedures should include at a minimum (as set forth more fully in N.Y. Gen. Municipal Law §39): (a) a list of the permitted types of investments; (b) procedures and provisions to secure the District's financial interest in investments; (c) standards for written agreements pursuant to which investments are made; (d) procedures for the monitoring, control, deposit and retention of investments and collateral; (e) standards for security agreements and custodial agreements with banks or trust companies pursuant to which obligations and collateral are held; (f) standards for the diversification of investments; and (g) standards for the qualification of firms with whom the District transacts business.

The District's investment objectives are, in priority order, as follows:

- to conform to all applicable federal, state and other legal requirements (legality);
- to adequately safeguard principal (safety);
- to provide sufficient liquidity for timely payment of all operating, capital and other expenditures (liquidity); and
- to obtain a reasonable rate of return dependent on market conditions (yield).

This policy shall be reviewed annually by the Board of Education.

Board Approved 2015 Board Reviewed 2018, 2019, 2020, October 3, 2023

POLICY 4060 ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING

The District will adhere to the accounting and reporting procedures required by the New York State Uniform System of Accounts for School Districts, the Board of Education, and other applicable state and federal law and/or regulation.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2020, October 3, 2023

POLICY 4070 PURCHASING

PURCHASING RESPONSIBILITY

The purchase of services, equipment, and supplies is centralized in the Business Office by the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing agent is authorized to sign purchase orders and enter into cooperative bidding and purchasing agreements. If the Purchasing Agent is absent, the Deputy Purchasing Agent is authorized to sign purchase orders and enter into cooperative bidding and purchasing agreements in his/her absence. All purchasing transactions are conducted through this office. Purchases may only be made within budgetary appropriations.

PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES

Goods and services which are not required by law to be procured by competitive bidding will be procured according to procedures developed by the Superintendent. These procedures must conform to the requirements of General Municipal Law §104-b.

"PIGGYBACKING" AND BEST VALUE PURCHASING

The Purchasing Agent may enter into purchasing contracts based on existing contracts made by the United States of America, any state, county, political subdivision or district in the United States to the extent permitted by New York State law.

The best value award methodology is authorized for use in purchasing contracts.

PREFERENCE FOR INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS IN "ALTERNATIVE FORMATS"

The Board of Education will give a preference in the purchase of instructional materials to vendors who agree to provide materials (of comparable quality) in alternative formats. For the purposes of this policy, 'alternative format' means any medium or format for the presentation of instructional materials, other than a traditional print textbook, that is needed as an accommodation for a disabled student enrolled in the school district, including but not limited to Braille, large print, open and closed captioned, audio, or an electronic file in an approved format, as defined in the regulations of the Commissioner.

This policy will be reviewed annually by the Board of Education.

Board Approved 2009 Board Reviewed 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 Board Revised 2020, November 14, 2023

POLICY 4080 INSURANCE

The budget will provide for the purchase of insurance to protect the District's real and personal property against loss or damage and liability insurance to pay damages assessed against Board members and District employees acting in the discharge of their respective duties, within the scope of their employment and/or under the direction of the Board.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2020, October 24, 2023

POLICY 4090 **RECYCLING OF SOLID WASTE** The Superintendent or his/her designee is to develop a program for the source separation and segregation of recyclable or reusable materials in the District consistent with federal, state and local laws.

POLICY 4100 SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM

It is the policy of the Board of Education to provide free and reduced price lunches for those children attending the East Irondequoit Central Schools who for reasons of family financial hardship cannot provide such lunches for themselves. This program shall be governed by all regulations and procedures of the applicable federal and state regulations. Copies of all pertinent regulations will be maintained up to date in the offices of the Director of Food Services.

The Director of Food Services shall have the responsibility for eligibility determinations, assisted by the school principals and school nurse.

Board Approved 2009 Board Reviewed 2012, 2014, 2018, 2020

POLICY 4110 INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAM

The District's administration shall establish an exposure control program designed to prevent and control exposure to infectious disease consistent with the New York State Department of Labor's standards.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2020, December 12, 2023

POLICY 4120 TRANSPORTATION POLICY

Bus Scheduling. Stops, and Routes: Bus schedules, stops, and routes will be established by the Director of Transportation and parents will be notified annually.

<u>Eligibility for Transportation - Home/School Walking Distances:</u> Transportation service for students to public, private and parochial schools, subject to change by the voters of the District as provided by law, will be as follows:

- Grades K-5, walking distance more than 1 /4 mile from school; and
- Grades 6-8, walking distance more than 3/4 miles from school; and
- Grades 9-12, walking distance more than I mile from school.

The Board of Education approves the use of child safety zones in determining eligibility for transportation and appoints a standing committee of the Asst. Superintendent for Business Administration, Director of Transportation and Assistant School Business Administrator to make recommendations as required by Education Law.

<u>Child Care Transportation</u>: It is the policy of the Board of Education to provide child care transportation for children from kindergarten through grade eight in accordance with Education Law Section 3635. In addition, eligibility for transportation as set forth in this policy will be computed walking distance between the child care location and the school.

<u>Activity Bus:</u> Activity bus service may be provided to eligible schools on a per day or per week basis. Schools requesting this service, public or nonpublic, must have a minimum number of students per day that require activity bus transportation. Minimums may be established by regulation or by the Director of Transportation and shall be consistently applied to public and nonpublic schools.

<u>Video Cameras</u>: The Superintendent or his/her designee may approve the installation of video cameras in district buses. These cameras are intended to identify individuals who may pose a security or safety problem on the bus. Parents will be notified of this policy on an annual basis. Recordings will be maintained for a period of ten days, unless an incident has been recorded that has potential administrative or legal uses. Such recordings must be maintained for at least three years pursuant to New York State's record retention requirements for school districts.

<u>Bus Safety</u>: The Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee, in cooperation with the principals, has the responsibility of developing and publishing safety rules to be followed by drivers and passengers, including rules of student conduct. Every bus driver is required to report promptly any school bus accident to the Director of Transportation.

<u>Cooperative Transportation</u>: The Board of Education authorizes the Director of Transportation to enter into arrangements with other districts to provide or receive transportation services on a limited basis without board approval. Board of Education approval will be required if formal contracts with other districts are required.

Residency: Students living outside the district will not be provided transportation except as required by law.

The Superintendent of Schools may adopt such regulations as he/she deems appropriate to implement this policy.

Board Approved 2009 Board Reviewed 2012, 2014, 2018, 2020, December 12, 2023

POLICY 4130 DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING OF BUS DRIVERS AND OTHER SAFETY PERSONNEL

The Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991 (P.L. 102-143) (the "Act") requires employers, including School Districts, to conduct mandatory drug and alcohol testing of bus drivers and other employees performing safety-sensitive functions. The Department of Transportation ("DOT") has issued regulations (49 C.F.R. parts 40, 382, 391 and 395) (the "Regulations") to implement the Act. It is the District's intention to fully comply with the mandates of the Act and Regulations, which are hereby incorporated into this policy.

Prior to performing required testing on covered employees, the District shall provide each covered employee with educational materials that explain the requirements of the Act, and the DOT regulations.

Any violation of this policy, the Act or Regulations by a covered employee shall be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, in a manner consistent with the District's pre-existing policies, practices, and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.

The Superintendent shall promulgate appropriate regulations/procedures to implement this policy and comply with the Act and the Regulations.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2015, 2018, 2020, January 9, 2024

POLICY 4140 EXTRA CLASSROOM ACTIVITY FUNDS

The conduct, operation and maintenance of Extra Classroom Activity Funds are to conform with the regulations of the Commissioner of Education (8 NYCRR Part 172). These funds may only be used for purposes which benefit the student body.

The monies received or derived from any "extra classroom activity" (as defined in 8 NYCRR Part 172) are to be deposited with the extra classroom treasurer designated by the Board for each school involved, who, in turn, will be responsible for the deposit of the funds in the appropriate bank.

The Superintendent is authorized to promulgate regulations consistent with 8 NYCRR Part 172 regarding the method to be followed for establishing an organization authorized to engage in "extra classroom activity" and the method for disposing of the funds of any defunct organization.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2020, January 9, 2024

POLICY 4160 ACCIDENTS Procedures are to be established and maintained by the Superintendent for the handling of injuries that occur on school property and during school activities.

Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2021, January 23, 2024

Board Approved 2012

POLICY 4170 **PARTISAN POLITICAL ACTIVITY** The Board of Education prohibits the use of any of the District's funds (federal, state or local) for partisan political activities. Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, 2021, January 23, 2024

POLICY 4180 TRAVEL AND CONFERENCES

The Board of Education recognizes and supports the professional development of its members and its employees as being in the best interest of the district. Appropriate professional development improves decision-making, effectiveness and productivity. In this way it provides value to the taxpayer.

The Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee is authorized to approve attendance at conferences and to define the necessary conference expenses to be reimbursed by the district within the parameters of this policy and of applicable collective bargaining agreements.

The District may prepay expenses where appropriate and necessary and will accept billing or employee claims for reimbursement of expenses within procedures established by the Deputy Superintendent (Asst. Superintendent for Business Administration).

The Board recognizes that some conferences are held in high cost cities and that some conferences have designated certain hotels as conference hotels. The board believes that:

- In the interest of efficiency, the employee should stay in conference hotels that provide quick and ready access to convention and meeting halls and other conference events.
- The employee should not be required to subsidize the cost of his or her attendance at the conference.
- That telephone calls home of a reasonable number and duration shall be considered an expense of the employee's attendance at the conference.
- A means of travel within and around a convention city when the employee is in that city for an extended period of time as long as such travel does not interfere with the employee participating in the conference schedule shall be considered an expense of the employee's attendance at the conference.
- Reasonable limits must be set on the cost of meals for which the employee is reimbursed, that those limits vary based on the type of city in which the conference is held and its location within the city.

The District will not reimburse the following types of expenses:

- Those of a purely personal nature.
- Sales or other taxes from which the District is exempt unless those taxes are paid on meal purchases.
- Alcoholic beverages

Employees who use their personal vehicles for approved District travel will be reimbursed at the IRS mileage rate in effect on the date of travel.

Employees attending conferences and traveling on other district business are representatives of the district and are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and appropriate manner.

The Superintendent of Schools shall provide administrative regulations as are necessary to define and implement this policy and to provide employees with proper guidance on those expenses that will be considered necessary conference expenses that are eligible for reimbursement by the District.

For purposes of this policy, members of the Board of Education and other non-employees authorized to travel and attend conferences on behalf of the District shall be covered as if they were employees.

POLICY 4190 CELLULAR PHONES

The Board of Education supports the appropriate use of cellular telephones as a means to improve efficiency, reduce costs or enhance the safety and security of students, staff, visitors and facilities.

A District-owned cell phone will be issued to an employee when required by that employee's job duties and as determined by the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee.

The District recognizes that it often is impractical for an employee to carry both a District and a personal cellular phone. Employees may use District-owned cellular phones for personal calls. The employee must reimburse the district for the cost to the District that is created or could be created by any personal use of the phone.

The Deputy Superintendent (Asst. Superintendent for Business Administration) shall establish a reimbursement rate and process that ensures that the District does not subsidize personal calls and that the District's costs do not increase as a result of personal use of cellular phones.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, February 24, 2021, February 27, 2024

POLICY 4200 CREDIT AND PROCUREMENT CARDS AND CHARGE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Education recognizes that credit cards, procurement cards and charge accounts (credit) may be necessary for the conduct of District business and may provide certain efficiencies that are in the District's interest. The Board of Education hereby authorizes the acquisition and use of credit cards consistent with this Policy.

Consistent with their authority under the District's procurement policy, and this Policy, the Purchasing Agent and Deputy Purchasing Agent shall be permitted to use credit. The Board of Education also authorizes the use of credit by other school officials and employees to pay for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of work-related duties for the district.

Care is to be taken to ensure that credit is not used in a manner that is inconsistent with this Policy, District's procurement policy and related administrative regulations and is used only for appropriate and authorized purposes.

The Asst. Superintendent for Business Administration may authorize use of credit in a manner consistent with this Policy and the procurement policy (#4070) and its regulations. The Asst. Superintendent for Business Administration shall establish appropriate limits on the use of credit cards, purchasing cards and charge accounts and shall determine which employees shall be issued credit or procurement cards. A list of those individuals will be maintained in the Business Office.

Employees are encouraged to use personal credit cards and submit claims for reimbursement consistent with the procurement policy (#4070) and regulations. District employees are never permitted to make personal charges using district credit or purchasing cards or charge accounts.

The use of credit or purchasing cards or charge accounts are for administrative convenience. They are not to be used to avoid compliance with this Policy, the procurement policy (#4070) and regulations or applicable laws.

Purchases that are unauthorized, illegal, represent a conflict of interest, are personal in nature or violate the intent of this policy may result in credit card revocation and discipline of the employee.

Users must submit detailed documentation, including itemized receipts for commodities, services, travel and/or other actual and necessary expenses that have been incurred.

Board Approved 2009
Board Reviewed 2012, 2015, 2018, February 24, 2021, March 12, 2024

POLICY 4210 MEALS AND REFRESHMENTS

The Board of Education recognizes that from time to time it may be appropriate to provide meals and/or refreshments at District meetings and/or events that are being held for a business or educational purpose. The District may pay for meals and refreshments when necessary for the conduct of District business. The District will not pay for meals or refreshments when the primary purpose of the meal is social or entertainment.

Meals and refreshments are also appropriate for certain district events with the primary purpose of promoting the participation in or understanding of district affairs by nonemployees including members of the community.

Meals or refreshments in settings that in which only District employees are in attendance are not eligible for charge to the District or reimbursement unless they are

- in conjunction with an approved conference; or
- necessary while traveling on district business; or
- improve efficiency; or
- necessary due to time constraints or the urgent nature of the business to be conducted; or
- a part of an approved Board of Education recognition process; or
- districtwide staff opening day; or
- approved in advance by the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee as being in the best interest of the District.

The Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee may authorize refreshments at events attended by significant numbers of nonemployees as a part of a program that promotes the understanding of district programs or initiatives if the use of refreshments as part of the event is deemed to be in the District's best interest.

The Superintendent of Schools shall provide administrative regulations as are necessary to define and implement this policy.

Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, March 23, 2021, March 12, 2024

POLICY 4220 NAMING SCHOOL FACILITIES

On occasion, it may be appropriate for the District to recognize the notable service performed, or exceptional support provided by individuals or groups. Recognitions through the naming of schools or other district facilities must be authorized by the Board of Education. If the Board of Education desires to consider naming a school or facility it may choose to form a committee whose purpose shall be to review and submit recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will make the final decision regarding the naming of a school or facility.

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

The Board of Education may appoint members to an Ad Hoc Committee as follows:

- a) One administrator
- b) One teacher
- c) Two students
- d) Three community members
- e) Additional members as the board may deem appropriate

GUIDELINES

A facility (or component) may be named to honor a person or organization for outstanding service or support of the School District or Community as indicated below:

Service:

A former employee or other person (or organization) who has rendered extraordinary service or left a legacy worthy of commemoration. To ensure a balanced perspective to the Board and community in deciding such honors for individuals, a minimum up to two years must have passed since that person's death or employment in the District.

Support:

Someone for whom (or on whose behalf) the District has received substantial financial or material support. This support shall directly benefit the District in pursuit of its educational mission and purpose.

The name of the facility/component will remain for the life of the facility/component, except in extenuating circumstances. Replacement or major renovation of the named unit may result in retiring the name.

Any facility or component name shall be considered a public expression by the board of education on behalf of the district. Adoption of such expressions will be consistent with the policies and missions of the district. Data regarding proposed names should be carefully prepared with sufficient information to enable the committee to make discriminating recommendations to the board of education. Board Approved 2012 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, March 23, 2021, March 26, 2024 **East Irondequoit Central School District Board Policy Manual** Page 129

POLICY 4230 ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES

The Board of Education hereby authorizes the Superintendent or his/her designee to accept electronic signatures for all transactions permitted by the New York State Electronic Signatures and Records Act. The Superintendent is directed to establish regulations consistent with this policy.

Board Approved 2007 Board Reviewed 2012, 2014, 2018, March 23, 2021, March 26, 2024

POLICY 4240 REPORTING AND INVESTIGATIONS OF ALLEGATIONS OF FRAUD OR MISCONDUCT

Any district employee or other person who has a good faith reason to believe that fraud, financial impropriety or other wrongful conduct is occurring within the District is encouraged to report that belief to the appropriate authorities, such as the Superintendent, the Independent (external) Auditor, the Internal Auditor, the school attorney, a member of the Board of Education or law enforcement officials.

The person who receives such an allegation shall promptly report it to the Superintendent who shall ensure that other appropriate persons are informed and that a thorough investigation of the allegation is conducted, except that if the allegation relates to conduct of the Superintendent, the person receiving the allegation shall report it to the Board President or school attorney, who shall ensure that the thorough investigation is conducted. When the allegation involves conduct that appears to be criminal, the Superintendent or other person conducting the investigation shall ensure that the School Attorney and appropriate law enforcement authorities are notified promptly.

If the District determines that a school official or employee has engaged in wrongdoing, appropriate disciplinary measures will be applied, in accordance with law, District policy and regulation, and any applicable collective bargaining agreement. The application of such disciplinary measures by the District does not preclude the filing of civil and/or criminal charges as may be warranted.

The Board prohibits any retaliatory behavior directed against those individuals who, in good faith, report allegations of fraud, financial impropriety and/or wrongful conduct as well as witnesses and/or any other individuals who participate in the investigation of an allegation of such conduct. Any act of retaliation is prohibited and subject to appropriate disciplinary action by the District.

Any person who knowingly makes false allegations of fraud, financial impropriety or wrongful conduct will also be subject to appropriate disciplinary action by the District.

The Superintendent will implement regulations regarding this policy and take appropriate steps to inform all employees of this Policy.

Board Approved 2008 Board Reviewed 2012, 2014, 2018, April 13, 2021

POLICY 4250 INFORMATION SECURITY BREACH AND NOTIFICATION

The District is required by State Technology Law to notify affected individuals when there has been (or is reasonably believed to have been) a security breach in the District's computer system which compromises the individuals' private information. "Private information" includes personal information such as:

- 1. Social security numbers;
- 2. Driver's license numbers or non driver identification numbers; or
- Account numbers, credit or debit card numbers in combination with any required security code, access code, or password which would permit access to an individual's financial account.

"Private information" does not include information that is lawfully made available to the general public from federal, state or local government records.

The Superintendent of Schools, or his/her designee(s), will comply with the requirements of State Technology Law, Section 208.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2014, 2018, April 13, 2021

POLICY 4260 GENDER NEUTRAL SINGLE-OCCUPANCY BATHROOMS

All single-occupancy bathroom facilities in the district are designated as gender neutral. Signs designating gender neutral single-occupancy bathrooms must be posted on or near the entry door of that bathroom facility.

A "single-occupancy bathroom" is as defined in Public Buildings Law §145(d) as "a bathroom intended for use by no more than one occupant at a time or for family or assisted use and which has a door for entry into and egress from the bathroom that may be locked by the occupant to ensure privacy and security."

The Superintendent of Schools or designee is directed to post appropriate signage to implement this policy consistent with applicable laws. Handbooks, directional signs, memos, safety plans, and maps will also be updated as necessary.

Ref: Education Law §409-m (single-occupancy bathrooms designated gender neutral)

Public Buildings Law §145(1)(d)



POLICY 5010 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

It is the policy of this District to provide equal opportunities for employment, retention and advancement of all people regardless of gender, sexual orientation, race, color, religion, national origin, age, disability, or any other characteristic protected by applicable federal, state or local law. The District will also comply with the requirements of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act (GINA). Pursuant to GINA, District officials will not ask for any "genetic information" (as that term is defined in the law) when requesting medical information about employees (for example, in connection with a fitness-forduty examination).

The Superintendent or his/her designee will be responsible for publicizing and disseminating this policy, both internally and externally, and to ensure its availability to interested citizens and groups and to promulgate regulations associated with filing, investigating and resolving complaints consistent with applicable law.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, March 8, 2022

POLICY 5020 UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT

East Irondequoit CSD is committed to maintaining a workplace free from sexual harassment. Sexual/Workplace harassment is a form of workplace discrimination. All employees are required to work in a manner that prevents sexual or other forms of harassment in the workplace. This Policy is one component of the District's commitment to a discrimination-free work environment. Sexual/Workplace harassment is against the law¹ and all employees have a legal right to a workplace free from sexual harassment and employees are urged to report sexual/workplace harassment by filing a complaint internally with the District. Employees can also file a complaint with a government agency or in court under federal, state or local antidiscrimination laws.

Policy:

- 1. East Irondequoit's policy applies to all employees, applicants for employment, interns, whether paid or unpaid, contractors and persons conducting business, regardless of immigration status, with the District. In the remainder of this document, the term "employees" refers to this collective group.
- Sexual/Workplace harassment will not be tolerated. Any employee or individual covered by this
 policy who engages in sexual/workplace harassment or retaliation will be subject to remedial
 and/or disciplinary action (e.g., counseling, suspension, termination).
- 3. Retaliation Prohibition: No person covered by this Policy shall be subject to adverse action because the employee reports an incident of sexual harassment, provides information, or otherwise assists in any investigation of a sexual/workplace harassment complaint. The District will not tolerate such retaliation against anyone who, in good faith, reports or provides information about suspected sexual/workplace harassment. Any employee of the District who retaliates against anyone involved in a sexual harassment investigation will be subjected to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. All employees, paid or unpaid interns, or non-employees² working in the workplace who believe they have been subject to such retaliation should inform a supervisor, manager, or Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources. All employees, paid or unpaid interns or non-employees who believe they have been a target of such retaliation may also seek relief in other available forums, as explained below in the section on Legal Protections.

¹ Harassment because of and discrimination against persons of all protected classes is prohibited. In New York State, such classes include age, race, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation, military status, sex, disability, marital status, domestic violence victim status, gender identity or expression, familial status, predisposing genetic characteristics, and criminal history.

² A non-employee is someone who is (or is employed by) a contractor, subcontractor, vendor, consultant, or anyone providing services in the workplace. Protected non-employees include persons commonly referred to as independent contractors, "gig" workers and temporary workers. Also included are persons providing equipment repair, cleaning services or any other services provided pursuant to a contract with the employer.

- 4. Sexual/Workplace harassment is offensive, is a violation of our policies, is unlawful, and may subject the District to liability for harm to targets of sexual/workplace harassment. Harassers may also be individually subject to liability. Employees of every level who engage in sexual/workplace harassment, including managers and supervisors who engage in sexual/workplace harassment or who allow such behavior to continue, will be penalized for such misconduct.
- 5. The District will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation that ensures due process for all parties, whenever management receives a complaint about sexual/workplace harassment, or otherwise knows of possible sexual/workplace harassment occurring. The District will keep the investigation confidential to the extent possible. Effective corrective action will be taken whenever sexual/workplace harassment is found to have occurred. All employees, including managers and supervisors, are required to cooperate with any internal investigation of sexual/workplace harassment.
- 6. All employees are encouraged to report any harassment or behaviors that violate this policy. The District will provide all employees a complaint form for employees to report harassment and file complaints.
- 7. Managers and supervisors are **required** to report any complaint that they receive, or any harassment that they observe or become aware of, to Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources and the Title IX Officer(s).
- 8. This policy applies to all employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees, such as contractors, subcontractors, vendors, consultants or anyone providing services in the workplace, and all must follow and uphold this policy. This policy is provided to all employees and posted prominently in all work locations to the extent practicable (for example, in a main office, not an offsite work location) and provided to employees upon hiring.

WHAT IS "SEXUAL/WORKPLACE HARASSMENT"?

Sexual/Workplace harassment is a form of discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. Sexual/Workplace harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual orientation, self-identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity and the status of being transgender, as well as race, age, religion, national origin, disability, veteran status and all other categories of individuals protected from unfair treatment under federal, state and/or local law.

A. Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is unlawful when it subjects an individual to inferior terms, conditions, or privileges of employment. Harassment need not be severe or pervasive to be unlawful and can be any harassing conduct that consists of more than petty slights or trivial inconveniences. Sexual harassment includes unwelcome conduct which is either of a sexual nature, or which is directed at an individual because of that individual's sex when:

- Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work
 performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, even if the
 reporting individual is not the intended target of the sexual harassment;
- Such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment; or
- Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting an individual's employment.

A sexually harassing hostile work environment includes, but is not limited to, words, signs, jokes, pranks, intimidation or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are directed at an individual because of that individual's sex or done so in reckless disregard of the fact that the act could be offensive on that basis. Sexual harassment also consists of any unwanted verbal or physical advances, sexually explicit derogatory statements or sexually discriminatory remarks made by someone which are offensive or objectionable to the recipient, which cause the recipient discomfort or humiliation, which interfere with the recipient's job performance.

Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for sexual favors. This can include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other terms, conditions or privileges of employment. This is also called "quid pro quo" harassment.

Any employee who feels harassed should report so that any violation of this policy can be corrected promptly. Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be addressed under this policy.

Examples of sexual harassment

The following describes some of the types of acts that may be unlawful sexual harassment and that are strictly prohibited:

- Physical acts of a sexual nature, such as:
 - Touching, pinching, patting, kissing, hugging, grabbing, brushing against another employee's body or poking another employee's body;
 - o Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults.
- Unwanted sexual advances or propositions, such as:
 - Requests for sexual favors accompanied by implied or overt threats concerning the target's job performance evaluation, a promotion or other job benefits or detriments;
 - o Subtle or obvious pressure for unwelcome sexual activities.
- Sexually oriented gestures, noises, remarks or jokes, or comments about a person's sexuality or sexual experience, which create a hostile work environment.

- Sex stereotyping occurs when conduct or personality traits are considered inappropriate simply because they may not conform to other people's ideas or perceptions about how individuals of a particular sex should act or look.
- Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace, such as:
 - Displaying pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, promotional material, reading materials or other materials that are sexually demeaning or pornographic. This includes such sexual displays on workplace computers or cell phones and sharing such displays while in the workplace.
- Hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual's sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and the status of being transgender, such as:
 - Interfering with, destroying or damaging a person's workstation, tools or equipment, or otherwise interfering with the individual's ability to perform the job;
 - Sabotaging an individual's work;
 - o Bullying, yelling, name-calling.

Who can be a target of sexual harassment?

Sexual harassment can occur between any individuals, regardless of their sex or gender. New York Law protects employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees, including independent contractors, and those employed by companies contracting to provide services in the workplace. Harassers can be a superior, a subordinate, a coworker or anyone in the workplace including an independent contractor, contract worker, vendor, client, customer or visitor.

Where can sexual harassment occur?

Unlawful sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. It can occur while employees are traveling for business or at employer sponsored events or parties. Calls, texts, emails, and social media usage by employees can constitute unlawful workplace harassment, even if they occur away from the workplace premises, on personal devices or during non-work hours.

B. Other Forms of Harassment

Other forms of prohibited workplace discrimination and harassment include unfair treatment on the basis of an employee's membership in a category of people protected by federal, state and/or local law. In other words, decisions which significantly affect the employment status of an individual cannot be based on the individual's race, age, religion, national origin, disability, marital status, veteran status, etc. These include decisions to hire, fire, promote, demote, alter compensation/benefits, give undesirable reassignments, etc. Like sexual harassment, this type of harassment is also unlawful when it subjects an individual to inferior terms, conditions, or privileges of employment.

This unfair treatment also extends to hostile work environment harassment. A harassing hostile work environment consists of words, signs, jokes, pranks, intimidation or physical violence which are directed at an individual because of that individual's protected category or done so in reckless disregard of the fact that the act could be offensive on that basis. This type of harassment also consists of any derogatory statements or discriminatory remarks made by someone which are offensive or objectionable to the recipient, which cause the recipient discomfort or humiliation, which interfere with the recipient's job performance. This unwelcome conduct need not be severe or pervasive to be unlawful and can be harassing conduct that consists of more than petty slights or trivial inconveniences.

As with sexual harassment, any employee who feels harassed should complain so that any violation of this policy can be corrected promptly. Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be addressed under this policy.

Examples of Other Forms of Harassment

The following describes some of the types of acts that may be unlawful workplace harassment and that are strictly prohibited:

- Racial slurs, insults, jokes or related degrading comments;
- Intolerance toward religious holidays, traditions and customs; cruel religious jokes;
- Degrading stereotypical comments about national origin, age, disability, race, religion, etc.;
- Teasing about an individual's disability, patronizing comments, refusals to reasonably accommodate a disability or isolation of such individual;
- Teasing or patronizing comments, jokes, etc. about an individual's age or any other protected category;
- Display of intimidating, demeaning, insulting or sexually suggestive objects, pictures, as well as written, recorded, or electronically transmitted messages.

Likewise, any of the following prohibited actions which are motivated by the recipient's membership in a protected category will also violate this policy (as well as other work rules against workplace violence).

- Direct threats of intent to inflict harm
- Physical attacks (hitting, shoving, kicking)
- Threatening behavior (shaking fists angrily)
- Destroying property to intimidate

Who can be a target of these types of harassment?

Workplace harassment can occur between any individuals in the workplace setting. A perpetrator of harassment can be a superior, a subordinate, a coworker or anyone in the workplace including an independent contractor, contract worker, vendor, client, customer or visitor.

Where can this harassment occur?

Unlawful workplace harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. It can occur while employees are traveling for business or at employer sponsored events or parties. Calls, texts, emails, and social media usage by employees can constitute unlawful workplace harassment, even if they occur away from the workplace premises or not during work hours.

RETALIATION

Unlawful retaliation can be any action that could discourage a worker from coming forward to make or support a sexual/workplace harassment claim. Adverse action need not be job-related or occur in the workplace to constitute unlawful retaliation (e.g., threats of physical violence outside of work hours).

Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. The New York State Human Rights Law protects any individual who has engaged in "protected activity." Protected activity occurs when a person has:

- made a complaint of sexual/workplace harassment, either internally or with any antidiscrimination agency;
- testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual/workplace harassment under the Human Rights Law or other anti-discrimination law;
- opposed sexual/workplace harassment by making a verbal or informal complaint to management, or by simply informing a supervisor or manager of harassment;
- reported that another employee has been harassed; or
- encouraged a fellow employee to report harassment.

Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the individual is protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the practices were unlawful. However, the retaliation provision is not intended to protect persons making intentionally false charges of harassment.

REPORTING SEXUAL/WORKPLACE HARASSMENT

Preventing sexual/workplace harassment is everyone's responsibility. The District cannot prevent or remedy sexual/workplace harassment unless it knows about it. Any employee, paid or unpaid intern or non-employee who has been subjected to behavior that may constitute sexual/workplace harassment is encouraged to report such behavior to a supervisor, manager or Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources. Anyone who witnesses or becomes aware of potential instances of sexual harassment should report such behavior to a supervisor, manager or Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.

Reports of sexual/workplace harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A form for submission of a written complaint is attached to this Policy, and all employees are encouraged to use this complaint form. Employees who are reporting sexual/workplace harassment on behalf of other employees should use the complaint form and note that it is on another employee's behalf.

Employees, paid or unpaid interns or non-employees who believe they have been a target of sexual/workplace harassment may also seek assistance in other available forums, as explained below in the section on Legal Protections.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES

All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected sexual/workplace harassment, observe what may be harassing behavior or for any reason suspect that sexual/workplace harassment is occurring, **are required** to report such suspected harassment to Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources and the Title IX Officer(s).

In addition to being subject to discipline if they engaged in harassing conduct themselves, supervisors and managers will be subject to discipline for failing to report suspected sexual/workplace harassment or otherwise knowingly allowing sexual harassment to continue.

Supervisors and managers will also be subject to discipline for engaging in any retaliation.

COMPLAINT AND INVESTIGATION OF SEXUAL/WORKPLACE HARASSMENT

All complaints or information about sexual/workplace harassment will be investigated, whether that information was reported in verbal or written form. Investigations will be conducted in a timely manner, and will be confidential to the extent possible.

An investigation of any complaint, information or knowledge of suspected sexual/workplace harassment will be prompt and thorough, commenced immediately and completed as soon as possible. The investigation will be kept confidential to the extent possible. All persons involved, including complainants, witnesses and alleged harassers will be accorded due process, as outlined below, to protect their rights to a fair and impartial investigation.

Any employee may be required to cooperate as needed in an investigation of suspected sexual/workplace harassment. The District will not tolerate retaliation against employees who file complaints, support another's complaint or participate in an investigation regarding a violation of this policy.

While the process may vary from case to case, investigations should be done in accordance with the following steps:

- Upon receipt of complaint, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources under supervision of
 the Title IX Officer(s) will conduct an immediate review of the allegations, and take any interim
 actions (e.g., instructing the respondent to refrain from communications with the complainant),
 as appropriate. If complaint is verbal, encourage the individual to complete the "Complaint
 Form" in writing. If he or she refuses, prepare a Complaint Form based on the verbal reporting.
- If documents, emails or phone records are relevant to the investigation, take steps to obtain and preserve them.
- Request and review all relevant documents, including all electronic communications.
- Interview all parties involved, including any relevant witnesses;
- Create a written documentation of the investigation (such as a letter, memo or email), which contains the following:
 - A list of all documents reviewed, along with a detailed summary of relevant documents;
 - A list of names of those interviewed, along with a detailed summary of their statements;
 - A timeline of events;
 - o A summary of prior relevant incidents, reported or unreported; and
 - The basis for the decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with any corrective action(s).
- Keep the written documentation and associated documents in a secure and confidential location.
- Promptly notify the individual who reported and the individual(s) about whom the complaint
 was made of the final determination and implement any corrective actions identified in the
 written document.
- Inform the individual who reported of the right to file a complaint or charge externally as outlined in the next section.

LEGAL PROTECTIONS AND EXTERNAL REMEDIES

Sexual/workplace harassment is not only prohibited by the District but is also prohibited by state, federal, and, where applicable, local law.

Aside from the internal process at East Irondequoit CSD, employees may also choose to pursue legal remedies with the following governmental entities. While a private attorney is not required to file a complaint with a governmental agency, you may seek the legal advice of an attorney.

In addition to those outlined below, employees in certain industries may have additional legal protections.

State Human Rights Law (HRL)

The Human Rights Law (HRL), codified as N.Y. Executive Law, art. 15, § 290 et seq., applies to all employers in New York State with regard to sexual harassment, and protects employees, paid or unpaid interns and non-employees, regardless of immigration status. This law also prohibits other forms of workplace discrimination and harassment against employees on the basis of age, race, religion, etc. A complaint alleging violation of the Human Rights Law may be filed either with the Division of Human Rights (DHR) or in New York State Supreme Court.

Complaints with DHR may be filed any time within three years of the alleged harassment. If an individual did not file at DHR, they can sue directly in state court under the HRL, within three years of the alleged harassment. An individual may not file with DHR if they have already filed a HRL complaint in state court.

Complaining internally to the District does not extend your time to file with DHR or in court. The one year or three years is counted from date of the most recent incident of harassment.

You do not need an attorney to file a complaint with DHR, and there is no cost to file with DHR.

DHR will investigate your complaint and determine whether there is probable cause to believe that sexual harassment has occurred. Probable cause cases are forwarded to a public hearing before an administrative law judge. If sexual harassment is found after a hearing, DHR has the power to award relief, which varies but may include requiring your employer to take action to stop the harassment, or redress the damage caused, including paying of monetary damages, attorney's fees and civil fines.

DHR's main office contact information is: NYS Division of Human Rights, One Fordham Plaza, Fourth Floor, Bronx, New York 10458. You may call (718) 741-8400 or visit: www.dhr.ny.gov.

Contact DHR at (888) 392-3644 or visit dhr.ny.gov/complaint for more information about filing a complaint. The website has a complaint form that can be downloaded, filled out, notarized and mailed to DHR. The website also contains contact information for DHR's regional offices across New York State.

Civil Rights Act of 1964

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces federal antidiscrimination laws, including Title VII of the 1964 federal Civil Rights Act (codified as 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq.). An individual can file a complaint with the EEOC anytime within 300 days from the harassment. There is no cost to file a complaint with the EEOC. The EEOC will investigate the complaint, and determine whether there is reasonable cause to believe that discrimination has occurred, at which point the EEOC will issue a Right to Sue letter permitting the individual to file a complaint in federal court.

The EEOC does not hold hearings or award relief, but may take other action including pursuing cases in federal court on behalf of complaining parties. Federal courts may award remedies if discrimination is found to have occurred. In general, private employers must have at least 15 employees to come within the jurisdiction of the EEOC.

An employee alleging discrimination at work can file a "Charge of Discrimination." The EEOC has district, area, and field offices where complaints can be filed. Contact the EEOC by calling 1-800-669-4000 (TTY: 1-800-669-6820), visiting their website at www.eeoc.gov or via email at info@eeoc.gov.

If an individual filed an administrative complaint with DHR, DHR will file the complaint with the EEOC to preserve the right to proceed in federal court.

Local Protections

Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment and discrimination. An individual should contact the county, city or town in which they live to find out if such a law exists. For example, employees who work in New York City may file complaints of sexual harassment with the New York City Commission on Human Rights. Contact their main office at Law Enforcement Bureau of the NYC Commission on Human Rights, 22 Reade, 1st Floor, New York, New York; call 311 or (212) 306-7450; or visit www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml.

Contact the Local Police Department

If the harassment involves unwanted physical touching, threats of violence, destruction of property, coerced physical confinement or coerced sex acts, the conduct may constitute a crime. Contact the local police department.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019 Board Revised 2018

New Policy Substituted: March 22, 2022

POLICY 5030 DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

The possession, manufacture, use or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol on school premises or as a part of school activities is strictly prohibited.

Employees under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or controlled substances while on duty are a serious risk to themselves, to students and to other employees. Employees who display physical manifestations of drug or alcohol use while on duty, may be subject to drug testing. Any employee who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination as provided for by statute and/or collective bargaining agreement, as well as referral for prosecution. Employees may also be required to satisfactorily participate in rehabilitation programs.

As a condition of employment, all employees must abide by the terms of this policy. Employees who are convicted of a drug offense which occurred on school premises or while on duty must notify the Superintendent of their conviction. Notification must be made by the employee to the Superintendent within 5 days of the conviction. Within 10 days, the Superintendent will provide notice of such violation to the Impact Aid Program, United States Department of Education, or other appropriate government agency.

The District administration will conduct a drug-free awareness program to inform employees of: (1) the dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace; (2) this policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; (3) available counseling and rehabilitation; and (4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

The District will conduct a biennial review of this policy to determine its effectiveness, implement necessary changes, and to see that the disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced.

This policy should be distributed in writing to all present and future employees.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019

POLICY 5040 CONDITIONAL/EMERGENCY APPOINTMENTS CHILD SAFETY

If an employee is serving under a conditional appointment or emergency conditional appointment pending employment clearance from the State Education Department, the Superintendent, or designee, will advise the employee's immediate supervisor and/or building principal of such appointment status, and request that he/she provide enhanced supervision as deemed appropriate to address safety of children who have contact with the employee. The immediate supervisor or building principal will, upon the commencement of the staff member's employment, meet with the staff member to review safety considerations and expectations for any contact such staff member will have with students. The Superintendent or designee will promptly notify the immediate supervisor or building principal of any changes in the employee's appointment status, including receipt of clearance for employment.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, March 22, 2022

POLICY 5050 FIREARMS AND OTHER WEAPONS

The Board of Education prohibits firearms, other weapons or any object that reasonably can be considered a weapon, bomb or firework, on any portion of the premises or in any building or property owned or controlled by the school district. Police officers who are on-duty or otherwise required to carry a firearm are the only people permitted on school property to have a firearm in their possession.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, March 22, 2022

POLICY 5060 CERTIFICATION

Each employee whose employment requires certification or other licensure is required to inform the Superintendent of Schools immediately of any change in the status of his/her certification or licensure. The changes may include, but are not limited to, the granting, revocation, upgrading, expiration, conversion and/or extension of these documents as to their periods of validity or their titles.

The original certificates and/or licenses must be presented for examination and copying in the office of the Superintendent of Schools as soon as they are available to the employee. The copies will be maintained in the Superintendent's files in support of the legitimate employment of each affected employee. The failure of any such employee to possess the required certification or other licensure may result in the discharge of that employee.

Whether or not the District verifies an individual's certification or licensure does not waive the responsibility of the employee to maintain what is required for his/her assignment.

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, March 22, 2022

POLICY 5070 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

The Board of Education recognizes that leaves of absence are occasionally necessary due to family or medical reasons. In accordance with Federal regulations, eligible employees are entitled to use up to twelve workweeks per 12-month period of leave for family and medical reasons recognized by the FMLA. In addition, under FMLA regulations an employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin caring for a military service member recovering from an injury or illness suffered while on active duty in the armed forces ("Service member Caregiver Leave") is entitled to a combined maximum of 26 workweeks for all FMLA leaves during any single 12-month period provided that the employee may not take more than 12 workweeks of leave for any other FMLA-qualifying reason during this period. The Board of Education hereby authorizes the Superintendent to establish procedures to comply with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

Board Approved 2013 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019, April 12, 2022

POLICY 5080 CODE OF ETHICS FOR ALL DISTRICT PERSONNEL

In addition to the prohibitions against conflicts of interest contained in N. Y. General Municipal Law, Art. 18, every officer and employee of the district, whether paid or unpaid, including members of the Board of Education, and their professional or nonprofessional staff and appointees (referred to collectively as "District officers and employees"), are subject to and must abide by the following standards of conduct:

<u>Confidential Information</u>: District officers and employees may not disclose confidential information acquired by them in the course of their official duties or use such information to further their private interests.

<u>Disclosure of interest in matters before the Board</u>: District officers and employees who participate in discussions with or give official opinions to the Board on any matter being considered by the Board must publicly disclose (in writing) to the Board, and (except for Board members) to their immediate supervisor, the nature and extent of any direct or indirect financial or other private interest¹ he/she has in such matter. This interest also includes any interest a District officer's or employee's spouse may have, will have or will later acquire in such matters. Such disclosure must be made as soon as the individual has knowledge of his/her (or his/her spouse's) actual or prospective interest.

<u>Investments in conflict with official duties</u>: District officers and employees may not invest in or hold any investment directly or indirectly in any financial, business, commercial enterprise or transaction that creates a conflict with his/her official duties.

<u>Private employment</u>: District officers and employees may not engage in, solicit, negotiate for or promise to accept private employment when that employment creates a conflict with or impairs the proper discharge of his or her official duties.

<u>Future employment</u>: District officers and employees may not, after the termination of service or employment with the Board, appear as a paid representative before the Board or any panel or committee of the Board, in relation to any case, proceeding, or application in which he/she personally participated during the period of his or her service or employment or that was under his/her active consideration.

<u>Federally Funded Purchasing Conflict of Interest Statement:</u> No employee, officer or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if there is a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer or agent, or any member of his or her immediate family, partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees or agents can neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts. Disciplinary actions will be applied for violations of such standards.

Penalties

In addition to any penalty provided for by law, any person who knowingly and intentionally violates any of the provisions of the Board's Code of Ethics or Article 18 of the N.Y. General Municipal Law may be fined, suspended or removed from office or employment, as the case may be, in the manner provided by law.

* The terms "interest" and "conflict" used throughout this policy have the same meanings given to those terms in N.Y. General Municipal Law, Article 18.

Board Approved 2013, May 10, 2022 Board Reviewed 2016, 2019